GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

@nda

Board of Directors

Friday, November 4, 2011

Following CAA Finance Committee Meeting
Kent County Commission Chambers

300 Monroe, NW - Grand Rapids, MI

1. Callto Order Steven R. Heacock
2. Minutes of Previous Meeting Action
3. Committee Reports
A. Operations Committee Information
B. Finance Committee
i. Approval of SMG Financial Statements Action
ii. Approval of CAA Financial Statements Action
iii. Special Purpose Financial Statements as of and Action
For the Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010
iv. Draft Financial Statements and Supplementary Action

Information for the Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010
V. Final Audit Communications Issued by BDO USA, LLP Action

4. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars Information
5. Public Comment
6. Adjournment

Next Meeting Date: Friday, December 2, 2011, Immediately
Following the CAA Operations Committee Meeting



1.

Steve Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. Susan Waddell recorded the

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Friday, October 7, 2011

Call to Order

meeting minutes in the absence of Secretary/Treasurer, Birgit Klohs.

2.

Attendance

Members Present:

Members Absent:

Staff/Others:

Steve Heacock, Chair

Lew Chamberlin
George Heartwell
Gary Mclnerney

Birgit Klohs
Joe Tomaselli
Floyd Wilson, Jr.

David Czurak
Daryl Delabbio
Tim Gortsema
George Helmstead
Chris Machuta
Rich MacKeigan
Doug Small
Greg Sundstrom
Eddie Tadlock
Susan Waddell
Jana Wallace
Richard Wendt
Robert White

Minutes of Prior Meeting

Grand Rapids Business Journal
Kent County

Grand Rapids Griffins
Experience Grand Rapids
SMG

SMG

Experience Grand Rapids
City of Grand Rapids
SMG

CAA

City of Grand Rapids
Dickinson Wright

CAA

Item 2

Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the Minutes of the September 2,

2011, meeting of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. The motion carried

unanimously.
3. Committee Reports

A. Operations Committee. Mr. Chamberlin provided a brief summary from the previous

meeting.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
October 7, 2011 -2

B. Finance Committee.

i SMG Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Mr. McInerney, moved to approve the SMG Financial
Statements for DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended August 31, 2011. After
review and discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

ii. CAA Financial Statements

Motion: Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Mr. Heartwell, moved to approve the CAA Financial Statements
Jfor the periods ended August 31, 2011. After review and discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

4, Approval of Booking Policy

Mr. Chamberlin summarized the discussion from the previous Operations Committee meeting. The
Operations Committee heard commentary from three arts groups expressing concern, but also support.
Mr. Chamberlin recommended CAA Board adoption of the revised booking policy, with a review in one

year to assess the impact of the changes.

Motion: Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Mr. McInerney, moved to adopt the revised booking policy as
presented, with a review of the policy in one year. The motion carried unanimously.

S. SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at Van Andel Arena®
and DeVos Place®.

6. Public Comment

None.

7. Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Friday, November 4, 2011, in the Kent County Commission
Chambers, Kent County Administration Building, 300 Monroe Avenue, NW, immediately following the

CAA Finance Committee meeting.

8. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:10 a.m.

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary



DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Iltem 3.B.i.



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
96 385 481 477 4
51,896 455,000 506,896 513,000 (6,104)
316,270 2,204,600 2,520,870 2,531,170 (10,300)
400,194 1,505,400 1,905,594 1,890,266 15,328
716,464 3,710,000 4,426,464 4,421,436 5,028
30,068 182,300 212,368 218,245 (5,877)
746,532 3,892,300 4,638,832 4,639,681 (849)
36,742 139,362 176,104 176,104 -
56,197 174,316 230,513 230,513 -
15,143 89,019 104,162 104,162 -
372,582 1,067,552 1,440,134 1,440,134 -
189,505 771,351 966,856 966,856 -
16,873 62,338 79,211 79,211 -
79,236 283,423 362,659 362,659 -
470,187 1,585,359 2,055,546 2,055,546 -
1,236,466 4,178,720 5,415,185 5,415,184 -
(489,934) (286,420) (776,353) (775,503) (849)
- 0 -
(489,934) (286,420) (776,353) (775,503) (849)

Through the first quarter of the fiscal year, DeVos Place has performed

consistent with budget and prior year performance overall.

Expenses are along the lines of where we would have expected them to be
and no change in the forecast has been made. While revenue is down
compared to budget for the first quarter, that gap is expected to be closed
by the end of the second quarter of the fiscal year and only minor changes

have been made to the revenue forecast.




DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date

as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

YTD

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

EVENT INCOME

September September September
Actual Budget FY 2011
39 39 46
18,711 27,685 33,959
$125,920 $134,865 $186,961
134,483 118,708 200,458
24,862 17,463 14,838
(468,712) (451,266) (407,193)
($183,447) ($180,230) ($4,936)
YTD 2012 YTD 2012 YTD 2011
Actual Budget Prior Year
96 96 88
51,896 73,750 52,748
$316,270 $424,088 $317,455
400,194 432,232 352,292
30,068 29,679 27,494
(1,236,466) (1,353,798) (1,176,098)
($489,934) ($467,799) ($478,857)

Event income came in at expected levels for the month.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in ahead of budget for the month with strong food & beverage

numbers overall.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses were consistent with expectations for the month.




Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelty Sales
Booth Cleaning
Telephone/Long Distance
Electrical Services
Audio Visual
Internet Services
Equipment Rental

Total Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements
Other Income

Total Other Operating income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income(Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(Loss)

Current Month  Current Month

DeVos Place
Income Statement
For the Three Months Ending September 30, 2011

Current Month  Year to Date

Year to Date

Year to Date

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
$135,254 $141,411 ($6,157) $205,990 $373,558 $454,675 ($81,117) $364,264
175,513 109,082 66,431 195,567 300,110 300,690 (580) 276,323
(185,477) (115,628) (69,849) (214,596) (357,398) (331,277) (26,121) (323,132)
125,290 134,865 (9,575) 186,961 316,270 424,088 (107,818) 317,455
6,798 5,494 1,304 8,923 14,559 14,668 (109) 17,191
63,837 43,296 20,541 91,342 153,801 141,814 11,987 142,487
646 1,375 (729) 502 646 1,750 (1,104) 502
9,112 10,125 (1,013) 9,002 23,867 47,878 (24,011) 19,193
0 756 {756) 225 0 4,320 (4,320) 225
22,326 23,046 (720) 25,223 59,671 102,405 (42,734) 39,580
16,234 20,850 (4,616) 31,596 94,118 76,845 17,273 81,144
3,867 3,721 146 19,302 20,386 10,302 10,084 20,955
11,663 10,045 1,618 14,343 33,146 32,250 896 31,015
134,483 118,708 15,775 200,458 400,194 432,232 (32,038) 352,292
22,060 12,880 9,180 12,402 23,974 15,930 8,044 19,380
22,060 12,880 9,180 12,402 23,974 15,930 8,044 19,380
281,833 266,453 15,380 399,821 740,438 872,250 (131,812) 689,127
1,357 1,750 (393) 1,802 4,072 5,250 (1,178) 5,406
1,445 2,833 (1,388) 634 2,022 8,499 (6,477) 2,708
2,802 4,583 (1,781) 2,436 6,094 13,749 (7,655) 8,114
284,635 271,036 13,599 402,257 746,532 885,999 (139,467) 697,241
182,175 231,512 (49,337) 263,218 507,596 694,536 (186,940) 562,393
47,195 60,020 (12,825) 62,754 128,878 180,060 (51,182) 135,485
(78,462) (123,027) 44,565 (168,092) {211,962) (369,081) 157,119 (260,730)
150,908 168,505 (17,597) 147,880 424,512 505,515 (81,003) 437,148
21,510 23,340 (1,830) 28,104 73,345 70,020 3,325 76,364
28,334 28,475 (141) 27,147 68,489 85,425 (16,936) 59,028
42,782 9,812 32,970 5613 51,407 29,436 21,971 45127
51,469 41,922 9,647 39,109 133,060 125,766 7,294 92,911
38,155 19,083 19,072 22,807 57,821 57,249 572 36,684
12,173 17,192 (5,019) 16,772 35,799 51,576 (15,777) 50,320
109,839 129,450 (19,611) 106,393 351,582 388,350 (36,768) 338,412
13,542 13,487 55 13,368 40,451 40,461 (10) 40,104
468,712 451,266 17,446 407,193 1,236,466 1,353,798 (117,332) 1,176,098
(184,077) {180,230) (3,847) (4,936) (489,934) (467,799) (22,135) (478,857)
(184,077) (180,230) (3,847) (4,936) (489,934) (467,799) (22,135) (478,857)

7



SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For the Three Months Ending September 30, 2011

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 40 40 24,384 44,600 453,131 573,240
Consumer/Gated Shows 2 2 1,928 3,000 16,623 16,674
Devos Performance Hall 9 9 8,662 11,000 71,561 66,360
Banquets 6 6 2,070 3,900 42,230 43,908
Meetings 30 30 5,252 7,200 113,395 98,970
Other 9 9 9,600 4,050 43,499 73,098
GRAND TOTALS 96 96 51,896 73,750 740,438 872,250
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 41.67% 41.67% 46.99% 60.47% 61.20% 65.72%
Consumer/Gated Shows 2.08% 2.08% 3.72% 4.07% 2.25% 1.91%
Devos Performance Hall 9.38% 9.38% 16.69% 14.92% 9.66% 7.61%
Ballroom Exclusive 6.25% 6.25% 3.99% 5.29% 5.70% 5.03%
Meetings 31.25% 31.25% 10.12% 9.76% 15.31% 11.35%

Other 9.38% 9.38% 18.50% 5.49% 5.87% 8.38%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

DeVos Place
Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2011

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

1,570,013
669,909
80,798
$2,320,720
$2,320,720
127,762
387,608
44,343
1,208,590
$1,768,303
280,734
761,617
(489,934)
$552,417
$2,320,720




SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of September 30, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Van Andel Arena
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable

71,725
71,053
380
9,112
16,234
163,920
195,417

86,052

56,016

669,909



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2011
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,133,949 (776,353) 357,596 368,125
Benchmark 750,000 700,000
Excess 1,133,949 (776,353) (392,404) (331,875)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 162,500 162,500 325,000 320,834
Incentive Fee
Revenue 5,059,171 4,638,832 9,698,003 9,514,544
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,100,000 9,100,000
Revenue Excess 259,171 438,832 598,003 414,544
Incentive Fee ** - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 162,500 162,500 325,000 320,834

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item 3.B.i.

VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2012

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS INCENTIVE FEE

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE

Comments:

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
14 86 100 100 -
79,778 455,100 534,878 542,200 (7,322)
258,144 985,400 1,243,544 1,259,448 (15,904)
216,248 915,800 1,132,048 1,101,555 30,493
474,392 1,901,200 2,375,592 2,361,003 14,589
637,879 2,045,700 2,683,579 2,635,440 48,139
1,112,271 3,946,900 5,059,171 4,996,443 62,728
49,668 129,036 178,704 178,704 -
47,209 192,712 239,921 239,921 -
58,085 214,145 272,230 272,230 -
354,854 1,248,487 1,603,341 1,603,341 -
29,988 94,576 124,564 124,564 -
8,858 78,418 87,276 87,276 -
3,797 20,159 23,956 23,956 -
346,637 1,048,593 1,395,230 1,395,230 -
899,095 3,026,126 3,925,222 3,925,222 -
213,176 920,774 1,133,949 1,071,221 62,728
0 - -
213,176 920,774 1,133,949 1,071,221 62,728

The first quarter of the fiscal year was a busy one, especially when
compared to last fiscal year as 7 concerts were hosted during the

first three months. Overall revenue, however, is down when compared

to budget due to a couple of the shows not selling as well as they

were anticipated to do.
Expenses continue to be in line with expectations and no changes have
been made. The rest of the fiscal year is anticipated to make up the

current shortfall with fairly strong concert activity throughout the fiscal year.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year;

MONTH September September September
Actual Budget FY 2011
Number of Events 8 9 10
Attendance 34,432 48,000 49,191
Direct Event Income $57,555 $114,682 $154,609
Ancillary Income 82,280 104,600 59,252
Other Income 178,833 247,508 132,171
Indirect Expenses (327,780) (327,101) (311,513)
Net Income ($9,112) $139,689 $34,519
YTD YTD 2012 YTD 2012 YTD 2011
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 14 15 13
Attendance 79,778 99,000 61,424
Direct Event Income $258,144 $351,376 $191,352
Ancillary Income 216,248 232,124 97,386
Other Income 637,879 739,158 459,222
Indirect Expenses (899,095) (981,303) (931,679)
Net Income $213,176 $341,355 ($183,719)

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in below budget due to the originally scheduled Katy Perry concert not
taking place during the month in addition to less than expected sales for the Uproar Festival.

The NBA labor issue caused the cancellation of the Pistons Preseason game, however, was offset
by the unbudgeted Red Wings game hosted.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income was down overall due to only hosting one concert versus the two concerts that
were expected in the budget.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month overall.




Van Andel Arena
Income Statement
For the Three Months Ending September 30, 2011

Current Month Current Month Current Month  Year to Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
Event Income
Direct Event Income
Rental income $110,697 $174,374 (63,777) $182,522 $236,840 $394,796 (157,956) $246,980
Service Revenue 71,206 140,202 (68,996) 297,151 434,154 418,758 15,396 455,027
Service Expenses (124,248) (199,894) 75,646 (325,064) (412,850) (462,178) 49,328 (510,655)
Total Direct Event income 57,555 114,682 (57,127) 154,609 258,144 351,376 (93,232) 191,352
Ancillary Income
F&B Concession 72,474 89,993 (17,519) 67,906 171,022 185,867 (14,845) 86,242
F&B Catering 5,003 6,551 (1,548) 1,346 17,015 16,493 522 2,349
Novelty Sales 4,033 8,556 (4,523) 0 27,441 30,264 (2,823) 8,777
Audio Visual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18
Other Ancillary 770 (500) 1,270 0 770 (500) 1,270 0
Total Ancillary Income 82,280 104,600 (22,320) 59,252 216,248 232,124 (15,876) 97,386
Other Event income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 14,488 42,174 (27,686) 1,300 89,188 147,696 (58,508) 28,842
Total Other Event Income 14,488 42,174 (27,686) 1,300 89,188 147,696 (58,508) 28,842
Total Event Income 154,323 261,456 (107,133) 215,161 563,580 731,196 (167,616) 317,580
Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements 104,239 146,335 (42,096) 82,060 380,540 414,465 (33,925) 271,090
Advertising 55,044 52,083 2,961 44,000 154,089 156,249 (2,160) 146,724
Other income 5,062 6,916 (1,854) 4,811 14,062 20,748 (6,686) 12,566
Total Other Operating Income 164,345 205,334 (40,989) 130,871 548,691 591,462 (42,774) 430,380
Adjusted Gross Income 318,668 466,790 (148,122) 346,032 1,112,271 1,322,658 (210,387) 747,960
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 142,827 160,923 (18,096) 166,192 491,869 482,769 9,100 457,138
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 36,428 45,035 (8,607) 35,049 124,930 135,105 (10,175) 100,541
Labor Allocations to Events (53,467) (72,806) 19,339 (81,012) (241,601) (218,418) (23,183) (156,497)
Net Salaries and Benefits 125,788 133,152 (7,364) 120,229 375,198 399,456 (24,258) 401,182
Contracted Services 17,305 22,140 (4,835) 21,555 54,981 66,420 (11,439) 65,798
General and Administrative 30,010 27,758 2,252 33,696 71,492 83,274 (11,782) 83,046
Operations 1,474 4,742 (3,268) 1,652 3,893 14,226 (10,333) 5,743
Repair and Maintenance 30,531 17,599 12,932 18,535 53,943 52,797 1,146 37129
Operational Supplies 18,865 17,550 1,315 20,356 26,844 52,650 (25,806) 43,397
Insurance 7,734 10,840 (3,106) 11,033 19,511 32,520 {13,009) 33,098
Utilities 82,531 79,833 2,698 71,189 252,608 239,499 13,109 222,182
SMG Management Fees 13,542 13,487 55 13,368 40,625 40,461 164 40,104
Total Operating Expenses 327,780 327,101 679 311,513 899,095 981,303 (82,208) 931,679
Net Income(Loss) From Operations (9,112) 139,689 (148,801) 34,519 213,176 341,355 (128,179) (183,719)
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Adjusted Net income(L.oss) (9,112) 139,689 (148,801) 34,519 213,176 341,355 (128,179) (183,719)

3



For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2011

SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Event Summary

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
6 6 22,046 22,000 44,714 47,396
1 1 9,052 9,000 79,181 57,480
7 8 48,680 68,000 439,684 626,320
14 15 79,778 99,000 563,580 731,196
42.86% 40.00% 27.63% 22.22% 7.93% 6.48%
7.14% 6.67% 11.35% 9.09% 14.05% 7.86%
50.00% 53.33% 61.02% 68.69% 78.02% 85.66%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Van Andel Arena
Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2011

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

3,230,113
793,401
115,362
$4,138,876
$4,138,876
(13,986)
870,376
1,787,802
909,048
$3,5653,240
(200,000)
96,853
466,496
222,287
$585,636
$4,138,876




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of September 30, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 81,405

Ticketing 152,987

Merchandise 5,572

Permanent Advertising -

DeVos Place (163,920)

Operating 602,483
Over 30 Days 81,874
Over 60 Days 33,000
Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable 793,401



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2011
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,133,949 (776,353) 357,596 368,125
Benchmark 750,000 700,000
Excess 1,133,949 (776,353) (392,404) (331,875)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 162,500 162,500 325,000 320,834
Incentive Fee
Revenue 5,059,171 4,638,832 9,698,003 9,514,544
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,100,000 9,100,000
Revenue Excess 259,171 438,832 598,003 414,544
Incentive Fee ** - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 162,500 162,500 325,000 320,834

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item 3.B.ii.
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

|

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONYENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACGILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Board
From: Robert J. White
Subject: September 30, 2011, Administrative Financial Statements
Date: October 31, 2011

The attached interim Balance Sheet and Income Statement are formatted to provide additional
information concerning the Convention/Arena Authority administrative account (unconsolidated) —
excluding facility manager financial activity (separately reported). Consolidated statements will
continue to be compiled on a quarterly basis.

These statements are prepared on a cash basis. The Balance Sheet includes a two-year comparative
financial position at September 30 for Fiscal Years 2011 and 2012. The Income Statement provides a
line item comparison of accounts for the current fiscal year as compared to a similar period in the prior
fiscal year. In addition, the Income Statement provides a comparison of current year budget to prior
year (FY 2011-subject to audit) actual. It will allow the reader to compare expenditure trends with full-
year budgetary allowances.

Items of interest in the two financial statements are explained as follows:

Balance Sheet {(Unconsolidated):

e The cash and investments position decreased by $.7 million from June 30, 2012. Minimal
receipts were offset by routine monthly disbursements.
e Fund balance decreased by $.66 million from the September 30, 2010 level.

September Revenue/Expense:

e Parking Revenue. Current-year revenues reflect timely deposits from the City Parking office.
Prior year activity reflected prepayment of the October Arena lot fee. When comparing revenue
from like periods, revenues are trending up by 14.2%.

e Utility Expense. Current-year invoice processing is running ahead of prior year. When
comparing like periods, utility costs are increased 10.5% over prior year.



e Marketing-CVB/Sports Commission. The current-year expense of $25,000 includes payment of
the 2011 fee to the West Michigan Sports Commission. The 2010 fee was expensed in October

2010.

e The current-year DID assessment expense includes only partial payment. The balance will be
paid in October.

These reports are intended to provide a summary analysis of administrative activities over the course of
the fiscal year. These reports continue to be updated on a monthly basis.



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Balance Sheet (Unconsolidated)

September 30, 2011
2010 2011
Assets
Cash - Operating $ 120,287 $ 18,282
Investments - Kent County 22,003,209 20,786,260
Capital Assets (Net) 788,841 1,611,131
Total Assets $ 22,912,337 $ 22,415,673
Liabilities & Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ (60,544) $ 105,621
Fund Balance 22,972,881 22,310,052
Total Liabilities & Fund Balance $ 22,912,337 $ 22,415,673




10B1U0D SAIEASIURPE DS UE 10 £99°9T$ pue Apmis
1oedWI SILIOU023 UE JO 150D 3y} J0J 30UBMO|[E 000°0SS © S3pnjouf (7)

®etsel1e) 3§ 9%s90c¢e) S

798°590°CC v6tscLve
(166'vLE) (9vL°956) (69¥°0%€) (2€5°299°0)
86+ vEL 2€8°L95°1 L8L 19TV £51°205°9
(9'06) 099°L6 LS LEOT (€1 000996 T08°ETH'E
T0T 8£8°9€9 $86°6CS 'L L8L°S6T'E 1S€°8L0°E
) 66L°€ 78L°€ €68 00S°L9 Yot
0) 16£°€T 195°€T 61 00042 195°€T
+001 £25°¢C - L'6TT 000°0€ 001°6
9'92°C 9€6°T1 96S 9'6¢ 000°0S 878°cE
S'€S 182°L L'y (9'8) 000°1L L69°LL
- - - +001 £99°9L -
(€59) ELY'LI 966°9C (o61) yTL911 691°b¥1
+001 SLSE - 9.9 000°0€ S68°LI
(1ze) 86£°8€ £01°SS 99 12L°8S €01°SS
+001 000°sZ - - 000°001 000°001
P61 SSLL 9€9°C g€ 000801 S10°v01
¥El 6£0°81 LO6°ST 611 6LS°€1T T08°061
661 899°GLY T0L°96€ 6T 009°6v€°T 6SL°€8TC
(I'iy) L0OS 65€ 980119 4 8IC 16 ¢ TC96E8°€
(8'8%) 85S°C 000 (Te) 000°0¢ 1860€
(s'L) Te6°6€ 991‘cy o€ 000902 0£0°002
9°¢ LTOLTIL 026°T11 6°€l 000°060°1 069°956
(9°59) 000002 $ o00‘ost §  (I'D) 81£°665°T 026°159°T $
Izueq) 0576 - 1/L 0€/6 - T/L Iguey) J3png Teury
Jge3uadag 10T Ad 1107 Ad adejuddIag 7107 Ad 1107 Ad
je@-01 -1 jenauy

Joue[eg punyg ul saduey)) pue sAINpaddxy ‘SaNuUIAN JO JUIWI) B}
ALIOYNY BUAIY/U0HUIAUG)) Ajuno)) Judd-spidey puels)

7107 ‘0€ dung Surpuy 1eaX 343 104

suonippypuswoesedoy/reday - voad (1)

‘SALON

poiiad jo pud ‘dduejeg
polsad jo Suruuidaq ‘aduejeg
saanyipuadxy J9AQ
SANUIANY JO (A2ud13Ja() $S99XH
saanyipuadxy fejol,
V/7ard rended

saamyipuadxy SuyesddQ
JayyQ/sarddng -
Joueinsuj -
UV JO JUSWAINDS0I] -
sanemuf ANsIaAl(q -
S9D1AISG [BUOISSIJOI] -
(@S*PIAIag Sunynsuo) -
sujauag/safem -

UolBNSIVIWPY

Suideospue] -
WdWssassy AId -
suods/gAD - Sunadjep -
Kya3eg UBLEISOPI -
juswaSeuey Funjied -
sanlnn -
suonesadQ
:saanjyipuadxy

SINUIANY [BIOL
SNOJUE[[0STA
1s210U]
Sunyed
DIA'S WoJy SIdJsuel],
1SINUIAY



DeVos Place, as
Managed by SMG

Special-Purpose Financial Statements as of and
for the Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, and
Independent Auditors’ Report

Item 3.B.



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010:

Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Amount Due Operator Arising From
Activities Managed by SMG

Statements of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses Arising From
Activities Managed by SMG

Statements of Changes in Amount Due Operator Arising From Activities
Managed by SMG

Statements of Operating Cash Flows Arising From Activities Managed by SMG

Notes to Special-Purpose Financial Statements

Page

69



Deloi
e o l tte o Deloitte & Touche LLP

38 Commerce SW

Suite 600

Grand Rapids, Mi 49503
USA

Tel: +1 616 336 7900
Fax: +1 616 336 7950
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

DeVos Place, as Managed by SMG
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DeVos Place, as managed by SMG, (“SMG-
DeVos Place™) as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and for the years then ended, as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of SMG-DeVos Place. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration
of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SMG-DeVos
Place’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

The accompanying special-purpose financial statements were prepared to present the assets, liabilities,
amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating cash flows of DeVos Place
arising from the management activities of SMG and are not intended to be a complete presentation of
DeVos Place’s financial position and results of operations.

In our opinion, such special-purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of SMG-DeVos Place as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2
to the special-purpose financial statements,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of SMG-DeVos Place and
officials of the Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority and is not intended to be, and
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Mitoitte ¢ Toorche cf

September 30, 2011

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND AMOUNT

DUE OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG

AS OF JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Operating
Ticket sales escrow

Accounts receivable — net of allowances of $47,000 in 2011

and $32,000 in 2010
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Advance ticket sales

Advance deposits
Deferred income

Total current liabilities

AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR

TOTAL

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2011 2010
$ 796,638 $ 805,142
98,354 36,621
753,650 674,726
148,022 109,847
$1,796,664 $1,626,336
$ 131,259 $ 325,831
435,812 412,027
98,354 36,621
341,292 263,445
28,330 28,685
1,035,047 1,066,609
761,617 559,727
$1,796,664 $1,626,336




DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING REVENUES AND OPERATING

EXPENSES ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

OPERATING REVENUES:
Events

Net ancillary revenues:
Food and beverage
Decorating
Electrical
Equipment rental
Other

Total net ancillary revenues

Total events and net ancillary revenues

Other — including interest income of $891 and $1,372
in 2011 and 2010, respectively

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payroll and related
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Utilities
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

DEFICIENCY OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER OPERATING
EXPENSES, BEFORE INCENTIVE MANAGEMENT FEE

INCENTIVE MANAGEMENT FEE

DEFICIENCY OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2011 2010
$2,587,093  $2,447,855
835,870 685,677
268,143 237,495
434,911 411,817
491,144 439,223
73,417 69,199
2,103,485 1,843,411
4,690,578 4,291,266
190,779 184,547
4,881,357 4,475,813
2,071,202 1,961,967
427,074 471,785
182,058 168,881
1,515,927 1,364,396
1,159,931 1,081,743
5,356,192 5,048,772
(474,835) (572,959)
88,466
$ (474,835) $ (661,425)




DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN AMOUNT DUE
OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR — Beginning of year $ 559,727 $ 673,014
DEFICIENCY OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES (474,835) (661,425)
CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED FROM OPERATOR 1,526,725 1,398,138
AMOUNTS PAID TO OPERATOR (850,000) (850,000)
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR — End of year $ 761,617 $ 559,727

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING CASH FLOWS
ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Deficiency of operating revenues over operating expenses $ (474,835) $ (661,425)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (78,924) (85,870)
Prepaid expenses (38,175) (35,676)
Accounts payable (194,572) 310,208
Accrued expenses 23,430 (2,660)
Advance deposits and ticket sales 77,847 (7,690)
Net cash used in operating activities (685,229) (483,113)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions received from operator 1,526,725 1,398,138
Amounts paid to operator (850,000) (850,000)
Net cash provided by financing activities 676,725 548,138
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN OPERATING CASH (8,504) 65,025
OPERATING CASH — Beginning of year 805,142 740,117
OPERATING CASH — End of year $ 796,638 $ 805,142

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

1. OPERATIONS

DeVos Place provides space for conventions, trade shows, concerts, meetings, banquets, and other
performances. DeVos Place is operated by the Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority (the “Operator™).

The Operator has entered into a Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) with SMG to manage the
operations of DeVos Place. The activities of DeVos Place that are managed by SMG are referred to
herein as “SMG-DeVos Place.”

The Operator, from time to time, provides funding to SMG-DeVos Place to pay the obligations of
DeVos Place when due. The Operator is contractually obligated to fund all liabilities and expenses of
DeVos Place.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation — The accompanying special-purpose financial statements were prepared to
present the assets, liabilities, amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and
operating cash flows of DeVos Place arising from the management activities of SMG and are not
intended to be a complete presentation of DeVos Place’s financial position and results of operations.
Such special-purpose financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and
include transactions managed by SMG in accordance with the Agreement, measured in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, the
special-purpose financial statements do not include property and equipment, noncontractual repair
expenditures, and related-fund equity associated with DeVos Place or certain other activities of the
Operator related to DeVos Place that are not part of the activities managed by SMG. Payroll and related
expenses are for employees hired by SMG to manage DeVos Place under the Agreement. These
employees are not employees of the Operator.

Use of Estimates — Estimates and assumptions are required to be used by management in the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
operating revenues and operating expenses during the reporting period. Management believes its
estimates to be reasonable; however, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Advance Ticket Sales — DeVos Place incurs a liability for all cash received from ticket sales in
advance of an event; a corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account. Revenues are not
recognized until the related event occurs.

Deferred Income — Deferred income is comprised primarily of advanced billings and collections for
premium seating, which are recognized as revenues on a straight-line basis over the lives of the related
contract.



Event Revenues — SMG-DeVos Place records event revenue upon the completion of the event.
Accordingly, amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits by promoters are recorded as
liabilities until that time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged
to expense upon completion of the event.

Ancillary Revenues — All concession and catering, decorating, electrical, and audiovisual revenues are
recognized when earned. Ancillary revenues are a contractually determined percentage of gross receipts
collected by the vendor for each event.

Other Operating Revenues — Other operating revenues are comprised of premium seating, interest
income, nonevent equipment rental income, ticket rebates, and other miscellaneous items.

Noncontractual Repairs — From time to time, SMG-DeVos Place incurs costs funded by the
Operator’s capital projects budget, which is separate and distinct from the operating funds provided by
the Operator to DeVos Place. The Operator ultimately decides which expenses will be capitalized or
expensed. These costs are excluded from operating expenses in the accompanying special-purpose
statements of operating revenues and operating expenses.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND FEES

SMG and the Operator have the Agreement, which originally was scheduled to expire June 30, 2009. On
April 29, 2009, the Agreement was amended by the Operator to extend through June 30, 2011. The
Agreement provides for both an annual base and incentive management fee. The annual base
management fee is adjusted upward annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (not
to exceed 3% in any one year). A decrease in the in the Consumer Price Index will not have an effect on
the management fee. Effective July 1, 2011, SMG and the Operator entered into a new management
agreement with substantially the same terms as the existing agreement. The new agreement expires on
June 30, 2014, with two 2-year renewal periods extending through 2018.

The incentive fee is based on the combined results of operations of DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena,
as managed by SMG (“SMG-Arena”), compared to certain operating revenue benchmarks, which
escalate by $100,000 each year through 2011, as defined in the Agreement. To qualify for the incentive
fee, combined operating revenues of SMG-Arena and SMG-DeVos Place must exceed combined
operating expenses by an established benchmark, as follows:

2011 2010
Excess of operating revenue over operating expenses —
as defined — Arena $ 842,960 $1,489,319
Deficiency of operating revenue over operating expenses —
as defined — DeVos Place (474,835) (572,959)
Total excess of operating revenue over
operating expenses $ 368,125 $ 916,360
Incentive benchmark $ 700,000 $ 700,000
Benchmark exceeded? No Yes



The below calculation is only performed when combined operating revenues of Van Andel Arena and
SMG-DeVos Place exceed combined operating expenses by the established benchmark. A schedule of
the base and incentive management fees for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, of which $88,466
is included in accrued expenses as of June 30, 2010, is as follows:

2011 2010
Base management fee, included in general and
administrative expense (A) $ 160,417 $ 158,672
Incentive fee:
Total operating revenues — Arena 5,302,116
Total operating revenues — DeVos Place 4,475,813
Total operating revenues 9,777,929
Revenue benchmark — Arena 4,750,000
Revenue benchmark — DeVos Place 4,150,000
Total revenue benchmark 8,900,000
Revenues in excess of revenue benchmark $ $ 877,929
Computation of incentive fee resulting from revenues in
excess of revenue benchmark:
25% of the first $500,000, collectively $ $ 125,000
30% of the excess of $500,000, collectively up to $183,100 113,379
Total incentive fee 238,379
Incentive fee allocated to Arena 149,913
Incentive fee allocated to DeVos Place (B) 88,466
Total incentive fee 238,379
Total management fees — DeVos Place (A + B) $ 160,417 $ 247,138

The base fee is contingent upon the Operator maintaining the SMG-Arena concessions agreement with
SMG - Food and Beverage LLC. If that agreement were to be terminated, the base management fee
would increase to $175,000 for each managed facility, adjusted annually by the percentage change in the
Consumer Price Index from the base year.



RETIREMENT PLAN

Employees at DeVos Place may elect to participate in the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan, a

401(k) defined contribution plan covering SMG employees who have completed one year of
employment and 1,000 hours of service. SMG-DeVos Place makes matching contributions equal to 67%
of each participant’s contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the employee’s eligible compensation.
Discretionary contributions may also be made on a monthly basis for active participants. SMG-DeVos
Place made $19,890 and $0 in matching contributions for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the operations of DeVos Place, SMG personnel also manage the operations of
SMG-Arena. The two facilities share certain expenses, such as payroll, employee fringe benefits, and
insurance, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities. The two facilities also
share a box office, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities for ticket sales.
Accounts receivable include $296,622 and $249,021 due from the SMG-Arena as of June 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively. Accounts payable include $175,838 due to SMG-Arena as of June 30, 2010.

CONTINGENCIES

DeVos Place is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the
normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material effect on SMG-DeVos Place’s financial position due to insurance coverage. As such, no
provision for loss has been made in the accompanying special-purpose financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date have been evaluated through September 30,
2011, the date the special-purpose financial statements were available to be issued. The special-purpose
financial statements and the notes thereto do not reflect events or transactions after this date.

% %k %k k %k %



Van Andel Arena, as
Managed by SMG

Special-Purpose Financial Statements as of and
for the Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, and
Independent Auditors’ Report

Iltem 3.B.iii.



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1
SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010:
Special-Purpose Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Amount Due Operator
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 2
Special-Purpose Statements of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 3
Special-Purpose Statements of Changes in Amount Due Operator
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 4
Special-Purpose Statements of Operating Cash Flows
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 5

Notes to Special-Purpose Financial Statements’ 6-9



D I i tt
e o l e o Deloitte & Touche LLP

38 Commerce SW

Suite 600

Grand Rapids, MI 49503
USA

Tel: +1 616 336 7900
Fax: +1 616 336 7950
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Van Andel Arena, as Managed by SMG
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying special-purpose financial statements of Van Andel Arena, as
managed by SMG (“SMG-Arena”), as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and for the years then ended, as listed
in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of
SMG-Arena. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration
of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SMG-Arena’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

The accompanying special-purpose financial statements were prepared to present the assets, liabilities,
amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating cash flows of Van Andel
Arena arising from the management activities of SMG and are not intended to be a complete presentation
of Van Andel Arena’s financial position and results of operations.

In our opinion, such special-purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of SMG-Arena at June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2 to the
special-purpose financial statements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of SMG-Arena and officials
of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority and is not intended to be, and should not
be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

itoitts ¢ Trirche 00?

September 30, 2011

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR

ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Operating
Ticket sales escrow

Accounts receivable — net of allowance of $34,000 in 2011 and

$46,000 in 2010
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Advance ticket sales

Advance deposits
Deferred income

Total current liabilities

AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR

TOTAL

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2011 2010
$1,705,282 $2,216,415
1,194,722 465,267
1,380,570 1,463,082
46,585 110,703
$4,327,159 $4,255,467
$ 745,455 $ 870,219
625,724 759,305
1,194,722 465,267
5,000 20,000
1,289,762 1,112,796
3,860,663 3,227,587
466,496 1,027,880
$4,327,159 $4,255,467




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING REVENUES AND OPERATING EXPENSES

ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

OPERATING REVENUES:
Events

Net ancillary revenues:
Food and beverage
Novelties
Other

Total net ancillary revenues
Total events and net ancillary revenues

Other revenues:
Premium seating
Advertising income
Other — including interest income of $1,011 and $10,356
in 2011 and 2010, respectively

Total other revenues
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payroll and related
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Utilities
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER OPERATING
EXPENSES — Before incentive management fee

INCENTIVE MANAGEMENT FEE

EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER OPERATING
EXPENSES

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2011 2010
$§ 922,855 $1,476,691
1,119,624 1,192,508
91,494 101,664
28,844 34,684
1,239,962 1,328,856
2,162,817 2,805,547
1,449,100 1,473,338
630,508 564,534
390,762 458,697
2,470,370 2,496,569
4,633,187 5,302,116
1,526,179 1,603,412
254,216 198,384
182,039 155,768
913,348 932,114
914,445 923,119
3,790,227 3,812,797
842,960 1,489,319
149,913
$ 842,960 $1,339,406




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR
ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR — Beginning of year $ 1,027,880 $ 820,030
EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER OPERATING
EXPENSES 842,960 1,339,406
CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED FROM OPERATOR 995,656 968,444
AMOUNTS PAID TO OPERATOR (2,400,000) (2,100,000)
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR — End of year $ 466,496 $ 1,027,880

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING CASH FLOWS

ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Excess of operating revenues over operating expenses
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advance deposits
Deferred income

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions received from Operator
Amounts paid to Operator

Net cash used in financing activities

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN OPERATING CASH

OPERATING CASH — Beginning of year

OPERATING CASH — End of year

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2011 2010
$ 842,960 $ 1,339,406
82,512 53,661
64,118 19,991
(124,764) 179,195
(133,581) 268,774
(15,000) 13,500
176,966 (63,259)
893,211 1,811,268
995,656 968,444
(2,400,000)  (2,100,000)
(1,404,344)  (1,131,556)
(511,133) 679,712
2,216,415 1,536,703
$ 1,705,282  $ 2,216,415




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

1. OPERATIONS

Van Andel Arena (the “Arena”) provides space for family shows, concerts, sporting events, meetings,
and other performances. The Arena is operated by the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority (the “Operator™).

The Operator has entered into a Management Agreement (the “Agreement™) with SMG to manage the
operations of the Arena. The activities of the Arena that are managed by SMG are herein referred to as
“SMG-Arena.”

The Operator from time to time provides funding to SMG-Arena to pay the obligations of the Arena
when due. The Operator is contractually obligated to fund all liabilities and expenses of the Arena.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation — The accompanying special-purpose financial statements have been prepared to
present the assets, liabilities, amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and
operating cash flows of the Arena arising from the management activities of SMG and are not intended
to be a complete presentation of the Arena’s financial position and results of operations. Such special-
purpose financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and include
transactions managed by SMG in accordance with the Agreement, measured in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, the
special-purpose financial statements do not include property and equipment, noncontractual repair
expenditures, and related fund equity associated with the Arena or certain other activities of the Operator
related to the Arena that are not part of the activities managed by SMG. Payroll and related expenses are
for employees hired by SMG to manage the Arena under the Agreement. These employees are not
employees of the Operator.

Use of Estimates — Estimates and assumptions are required to be used by management in the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
operating revenues and operating expenses during the reporting period. Management believes its
estimates to be reasonable; however, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Advance Ticket Sales — The Arena incurs a liability for cash received from ticket sales in advance of
an event; a corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account. Operating revenues are not
recognized until the related event occurs.

Deferred Income — Deferred income is comprised primarily of advanced billings and collections for
luxury boxes and advertising contracts, which are recognized as revenues on a straight-line basis over
the lives of the related contract. Also included are ticket rebates received from the ticket agent prior to
an event, which are not recognized as revenue until the event occurs.



Event Revenues — SMG-Arena records event revenue upon the completion of the event. Accordingly,
amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits by promoters are recorded as liabilities until that
time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged to expense upon
completion of the event.

Ancillary Revenues — All concession and merchandise revenues are recognized when earned.
Ancillary revenues are a contractually determined percentage of gross receipts collected by the vendor
for each event.

Other Operating Revenues — Other operating revenues include revenues associated with luxury
seating, advertising, ticket rebates, interest income, and other miscellaneous items.

Noncontractual Repairs — From time to time, SMG-Arena incurs costs funded by the Operator’s
capital projects budget, which is separate and distinct from the operating funds provided by the Operator
to the Arena. The Operator ultimately decides which expenses will be capitalized or expensed. These
costs are excluded from operating expenses in the accompanying special-purpose statements of
operating revenues and operating expenses.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND FEES

SMG and the Operator have the Agreement, which was originally scheduled to expire June 30, 2009. On
April 29, 2009, the agreement was amended by the Operator to extend through June 30, 2011. The
Agreement provides for both an annual base and incentive management fee. The annual base
management fee is adjusted upward annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (not
to exceed 3% in any one year). A decrease in the Consumer Price Index will not have an effect on the
management fee. Effective July 1, 2011, SMG and the Operator entered into a new management
agreement with substantially the same terms as the existing agreement. The new agreement expires on
June 30, 2014, with two 2-year renewal periods extending through 2018.

The incentive fee is based on the combined results of operations of the Arena and DeVos Place, as
managed by SMG (“SMG-DeVos Place”), compared to certain operating revenue benchmarks, which
escalate by $100,000 each year through 2011, as defined in the Agreement. To qualify for the incentive
fee, combined operating revenues of SMG-Arena and SMG-DeVos Place must exceed combined
operating expenses by an established benchmark, as follows:

2011 2010
Excess of operating revenue over operating expenses —
as defined — Arena $ 842,960 $1,489,319
Deficiency of operating revenue over operating expenses —
as defined — DeVos Place (474,835) (572,959)
Total excess of operating revenue over
operating expenses $ 368,125 $ 916,360
Incentive benchmark $ 700,000 $ 700,000
Benchmark exceeded? No Yes



The below calculation is only performed when combined operating revenues of the Arena and
SMG-DeVos Place exceed combined operating expenses by the established benchmark. A schedule of
the base and incentive management fees for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, of which $149,913
is included in accrued expenses as of June 30, 2010, is as follows:

2011 2010

Base management fee — included in general and

administrative expense (A) $160,417 $ 158,672
Incentive fee calculation:

Total operating revenues — Arena $ - $5,302,116

Total operating revenues — DeVos Place 4,475,813

Total operating revenues - 9,777,929
Revenue benchmark — Arena 4,750,000
Revenue benchmark — DeVos Place 4,150,000
Total revenue benchmark - 8,900,000

Revenues in excess of revenue benchmark $ - $ 877,929
Computation of incentive fee resulting from revenues in

excess of revenue benchmark:

25% of the first $500,000, collectively $ - $ 125,000

30% of the excess of $500,000, collectively up to $183,100 113,379
Total incentive fee $ - $ 238,379
Incentive fee allocated to Arena (B) $ - $ 149,913
Incentive fee allocated to DeVos Place 88,466
Total incentive fee $ - $ 238,379
Total management fees — Arena (A + B) $160,417 $ 308,585

The base fee is contingent upon the Operator maintaining the SMG-Arena concessions agreement with
SMG - Food & Beverage, LLC. If that agreement were to be terminated, the base management fee
would increase to $175,000 for each managed facility, adjusted annually by the percentage change in the
Consumer Price Index from the base year.

RETIREMENT PLAN

Employees at the Arena may elect to participate in the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan, a

401(k) defined contribution plan covering SMG employees who have completed one year of
employment and 1,000 hours of service. SMG-Arena makes matching contributions equal to 67% of
each participant’s contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the participant’s eligible compensation.
Discretionary contributions may also be made on a monthly basis for active participants. SMG-Arena
made $10,014 and $0 in matching contributions for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.



OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the operations of the Arena, SMG personnel also manage the operations of SMG-DeVos
Place. The two facilities share certain expenses, such as payroll, employee fringe benefits, and
insurance, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities. The two facilities also
share a box office, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities for ticket sales.
Accounts payable include $296,622 and $249,021 due to DeVos Place as of June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Accounts receivable include $175,838 due from DeVos Place as of June 30, 2010.

On July 1, 2006, the Operator entered into a concessions agreement for the Arena with SMG — Food &
Beverage, LLC a related party to SMG. Accounts receivable include $1,756 and $8,325 from SMG —
Food & Beverage, LLC as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

CONTINGENCIES

The Arena is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the normal
course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material effect on SMG-Arena’s financial position due to insurance coverage. As such, no provision for
loss has been made in the accompanying special-purpose financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date have been evaluated through September 30,
2011, the date the special-purpose financial statements were available to be issued. The special-purpose
financial statements and the notes thereto do not reflect events or transactions after this date.

* %k %k k %k %k



Deloitte. et st

38 Commerce SW

Suite 600

Grand Rapids, M 49503
USA

Tel: +1 616 336 7900
Fax: +1 616 336 7950
www.deloitte.com

September 30, 2011

To the Finance Committee of
Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

Dear Members of the Finance Committee:

We have performed an audit of the financial statements of DeVos Place, as managed by SMG and Van
Andel Arena, as managed by SMG (the “Arena and DeVos Place”) as of and for the year ended June 30,
2011, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(“generally accepted auditing standards™) and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 2011.

We have prepared the following comments to assist you in fulfilling your obligation to oversee the
financial reporting and disclosure process for which management of the Arena and DeVos Place is
responsible.

Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

Our responsibility under generally accepted auditing standards has been described in our engagement
letter dated July 15, 2011, a copy of which has been provided to you. As described in that letter, the
objective of a financial statement audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards is to express an opinion on the fairness of the presentation of the Arena and DeVos Place’s
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“generally accepted accounting principles™), in all material
respects. Our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards include forming and expressing
an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the
oversight of the Finance Committee are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
management or the Finance Committee of their responsibilities.

We considered the Arena and DeVos Place’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Arena and DeVos Place’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Arena and DeVos Place’s internal
control over financial reporting. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are ordinarily based on knowledge and
experience about past and current events and on assumptions about future events. Significant accounting
estimates reflected in the Arena and DeVos Place’s 2011 special-purpose financial statements include the
allowance for doubtful accounts. During the year ended June 30, 2011, we are not aware of any
significant changes in accounting estimates or in management’s judgments relating to such estimates.

Uncorrected Misstatements

Our audit of the financial statements was designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused by error or
fraud. There were no uncorrected misstatements or disclosure items passed identified during our audit.

Material Corrected Misstatements

Our audit of the financial statements was designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused by error or
fraud. There were no material misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result
of our audit procedures.

Significant Accounting Policies

The Arena and DeVos Place’s significant accounting policies are set forth in Note 2 to the Arena and
DeVos Place’s 2011 special-purpose financial statements. During the year ended June 30, 2011, there
were no significant changes in previously adopted accounting policies or their application.

Other Significant Issues Discussed, or Subject of Correspondence, with Management

Throughout the year, routine discussions were held, or were the subject of correspondence, with
management. In our judgment, such discussions or correspondence did not involve significant issues
requiring communication to the Finance Committee.

Significant Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

In our judgment, we received the full cooperation of the Arena and DeVos Place’s management and staff
and had unrestricted access to the Arena and DeVos Place’s senior management in the performance of our
audit.

Management’s Representations

We have made specific inquiries of the Arena and DeVos Place’s management about the representations
embodied in the financial statements. Additionally, we have requested that management provide to us the
written representations the Arena and DeVos Place is required to provide to its independent auditors
under generally accepted auditing standards. We have attached to this letter, as Appendix A, a copy of the
representation letter we obtained from management.

* ok %k k k %k



This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Finance Committee, and
others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Yours truly,

Aitoitty ¢ Trche c2?

cc: The Management of Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place

® Appendix A: Representations from Management



GRAND RQ'PIDS-KENT COUNTY
e T e o T e o T P o S i

s e sl el s ™
ITY
EOAAIL RN AT AR APPENDIX A

181}

September 30, 2011

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Suite 600

38 Commerce SW
Grand Rapids, M1 49503

We are providing this letter in connection with your audits of the Van Andel Arena special

purpose statements of assets, liabilities, and amounts due Operator arising from the activities

managed by SMG(“SMG ~ Van Andel Arena”) as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 and the related
Convention special purpose financial statements of operating revenues and operating expenses arising from
activities managed by SMG, and opcrating cash flows arising from activities managed by SMG,
for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to
whether the special purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of Van Andel Arena, as managed by
SMG, in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2 to the special purpose
financial statement.

Arena

Authority

We confirm that we are responsible for the following:

a.  The fair prescntation in the special purpose, financial statements of financial position, resuits
of operations, and cash flows in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2
to the special purpose financial statement.

b.  The design, implementation, and maintenance of programs and controls to prevent and
detect fraud

c. Establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
Jjudgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you
during your audits.

1. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with the basis
of accounting described in Note 2 to the special purpose financial statement.

SMG - Van Andel Arena has provided to you all relevant information and access as agreed

in the terms of the audit engagement letter, including: 3
f EVOUS PLJKCE
v a.  Financial records and related data DeVAos Plﬁwo
303 Monroe Ave.
]G?En\évek‘(:pﬁzls',o'lkl 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2233

GME>

e



b. Minutes of the meetings of stockholders, directors, and committees of directors or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

3. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance
with or deficiencies in financial reporting.

4. SMG — Van Andel has not performed a risk assessment, including the assessment of the risk
that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

5. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting SMG — Van Andel Arena
involving:

a. Management

b. Employees who have significant roles in the SMG —Van Andel Arena’s internal control
over financial reporting

c. Others, if the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements

6. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the SMG —
Van Andel Arena received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators, or others.

7. There are no unasserted claims or assessments that legal counsel has advised us are probable
of assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 450, Contingencies (formerly
FASB Statement No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies)

8. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates are reasonable.

9. As an enterprise fund of the Grand Rapids — Kent Country Convention/ Arena Authority,
SMG - Van Andel Arena is exempt from Federal Income Tax. We are not aware of any
activities that have taken place that would jeopardize SMG — Van Andel Arena’s income tax
exempt status.

Except where otherwise stated below, immaterial matters less than $27,000 collectively are not
considered to be exceptions that require disclosure for the purpose of the following
representations. This amount is not necessarily indicative of amounts that would require
adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial statements.

10. There are no transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records
underlying the financial statements.

11. SMG - Van Andel has no plans or intentions that may affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities.

12. The following, to the extent applicable, have been appropriately identified, properly
recorded, and disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Related-party transactions and associated amounts receivable or payable, including
sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees (written or oral)



13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

b. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the SMG - Van Andel is contingently
liable.

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with the basis of accounting described in
Note 2 of special purpose financial statements, management uses estimates. All estimates
have been disclosed in the financial statements for which known information available prior
to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that both of the following criteria are
met:

a. Itis at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect on the financial
statements of a condition, situation, or set of circumstances that existed at the date of
the financial statements will change in the near term due to one or more future
confirming events.

b. The effect of the change would be material to the financial statements.

Risks associated with concentrations, based on information known to management, that
meet all of the following criteria have been disclosed in the financial statements:

a. The concentration exists at the date of the financial statements.

b. The concentration makes the enterprise vulnerable to the risk of a near-term severe
impact.

c. Itis at least reasonably possible that the events that could cause the severe impact will
occur in the near term.

There are no:

a. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss
contingency.

b. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or
disclosed by FASB ASC 450, Contingencies (formerly FASB Statement No. 5,
Accounting for Contingencies).

SMG - Van Andel Arena has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

SMG — Van Andel Arena has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that may
have an effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

No events have occurred subsequent to June 30, 2011 that require consideration as
adjustments to, or disclosures in, the financial statements.

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for
sales or other charges arising on or before the balance-sheet date and have been
appropriately reduced to their estimated net realizable value.

We believe that all expenditures that have been deferred to future periods are recoverable.



21

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

We have no intention of withdrawing from the SMG Retirement and Saving Plan or taking
any other action that could result in an effective termination or reportable event for any of
the plans. We are not aware of any occurrences that could result in the termination of any of
the SMG Retirement and Saving Plan.

Provision has been made for any loss to be sustained in the fulfiliment of, or from inability
to fulfill, any sales commitments.

Sales with recourse provisions have been properly recorded and disclosed in the financial
statements,

We have fully disclosed to you all sales terms, including all rights of return or price
adjustments and all warranty provisions.

All documentation related to sales transactions is contained in customer files. We also
confirm that:

a. We are not aware of any “side agreements” with any companies that are inconsistent with

the applicable sales agreement, the customer’s purchase order, sales invoice, or any other
documentation contained in the customer’s file. For the purposes of this letter, a “side
agreement” is any agreement, understanding, promise, or commitment, whether written
(e.g., in the form of a letter or formal agreement or in the form of any exchange of
physical or electronic communications) or oral, by or on behalf of SMG - Van Andel
Arena (or any subsidiary, director, employee, or agent of SMG) with a customer from
whom revenue has been recognized that is not contained in the written purchase order
from the customer or sales order confirmation and sales invoice of SMG — Van Andel
Arena delivered to or generated by the SMG — Van Andel Arena Accounting and
Finance Department. The definition of a side agreement is not limited by any particular
subject matter. For purposes of example only, any agreement not contained in the written
purchase order from the customer or sales order and sales invoice of SMG ~ Van Andel
Arena that relates to return rights, acceptance rights, future pricing, payment terms, free
consulting, free maintenance, or exchange rights would be a side agreement.

b. We are not aware of any commitments or concessions to a customer regarding pricing or

payment terms outside of the terms documented in the customer’s file

For the purpose of calculating the incentive fee, all interest income included in the
calculation is properly included and does not include any ineligible income.

For purpose of the special purpose financial statements, non-contractual expenses have been
approxnmately excluded from the special purpose Statement of Revenues and Expenses




Convention
Arena

Authority

GRAND RABIDSKENT COUNTY

CONVE
[ERIRY

1

T|ON / ARCNA AUIHORITY
it

Ry

September 30, 2011

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Suite 600

38 Commerce SW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503

We are providing this letter in connection with your audits of the DeVos Place special purpose
statements of assets, liabilities, and amounts due Operator arising from the activities managed by
SMG(“SMG ~ DeVos Place™) as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 and the related special purpose
financial statements of operating revenues and operating expenses arising from activities
managed by SMG, and operating cash flows arising from activities managed by SMG, for the
years ended June 30,2011 and 2010, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the
special purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position,
results of operations, and cash flows of DeVos Place, as managed by SMG, in conformity with
the basis of accounting described in Note 2 to the special purpose financial statement.

We confirm that we are responsible for the following;

a.  The fair presentation in the special purpose, financial statements of financial position, results
of operations, and cash flows in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2
to the special purpose financial statement.

b. The design, implementation, and maintenance of programs and controls to prevent and
detect fraud

c. Establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you
during your audits.

1. The financial statemnents referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with the basis
of accounting described in Note 2 to the special purpose financial statement.

SMG — DeVos place has provided to you all relevant information and access as agreed in
the terms of the audit engagement letter, including:

a. Financial records and related data 3 =2 T PLACE

DeVos Placee
3 Monroe Ave. NW

lto 30
Roplds, MI 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2233



b. Minutes of the meetings of stockholders, directors, and committees of directors or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

3. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance
with or deficiencies in financial reporting practices.

4. SMG - DeVos place has not performed a risk assessment, including the assessment of the
risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

5. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting SMG — DeVos Place
involving:

a. Management

b. Employees who have significant roles in the SMG — DeVos Place’s internal control
over financial reporting

c. Others, if the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements

6. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the SMG —
DeVos Place received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators, or others.

7. There are no unasserted claims or assessments that legal counsel has advised us are probable
of assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 450, Contingencies (formerly
FASB Statement No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies)

8. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates are reasonable.

9. As an enterprise fund of the Grand Rapids — Kent Country Convention/ Arena Authority,
SMG - DeVos Place is exempt from Federal Income Tax. We are not aware of any activities
that have taken place that would jeopardize SMG — DeVos Place’s income tax exempt
status.

Except where otherwise stated below, immaterial matters less than $29,000 collectively are not
considered to be exceptions that require disclosure for the purpose of the following
representations. This amount is not necessarily indicative of amounts that would require
adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial statements.

10. There are no transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records
underlying the financial statements.

11. SMG - DeVos Place has no plans or intentions that may affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities.

12. The following, to the extent applicable, have been appropriately identified, properly
recorded, and disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Related-party transactions and associated amounts receivable or payable, including
sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees (written or oral)



13.

14.

1S.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

b. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the SMG — DeVos Place is
contingently liable.

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with the basis of accounting described in
Note 2 of special purpose financial statements, management uses estimates. All estimates
have been disclosed in the financial statements for which known information available prior
to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that both of the following criteria are
met:

a. Itis at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect on the financial
statements of a condition, situation, or set of circumstances that existed at the date of
the financial statements will change in the near term due to one or more future
confirming events.

b. The effect of the change would be material to the financial statements.

Risks associated with concentrations, based on information known to management, that
meet all of the following criteria have been disclosed in the financial statements:

a. The concentration exists at the date of the financial statements.

b. The concentration makes the enterprise vulnerable to the risk of a near-term severe
impact.

c. Itis at least reasonably possible that the events that could cause the severe impact will
occur in the near term.

There are no:

a. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss
contingency.

b. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or
disclosed by FASB ASC 450, Contingencies (formerly FASB Statement No. 5,
Accounting for Contingencies).

SMG - DeVos Place has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

SMG — DeVos Place has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that may have
an effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

No events have occurred subsequent to June 30, 2011 that require consideration as
adjustments to, or disclosures in, the financial statements.

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for
sales or other charges arising on or before the balance-sheet date and have been
appropriately reduced to their estimated net realizable value.

We believe that all expenditures that have been deferred to future periods are recoverable.



21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

We have no intention of withdrawing from the SMG Retirement and Saving Plan or taking
any other action that could result in an effective termination or reportable event for any of
the plans. We are not aware of any occurrences that could result in the termination of any of
the SMG Retirement and Saving Plan.

Provision has been made for any loss to be sustained in the fulfillment of, or from inability
to fulfill, any sales commitments.

Sales with recourse provisions have been properly recorded and disclosed in the financial
statements.

We have fully disclosed to you all sales terms, including all rights of return or price
adjustments and all warranty provisions.

All documentation related to sales transactions is contained in customer files. We also
confirm that:

a. We are not aware of any “side agreements” with any companies that are inconsistent with
the applicable sales agreement, the customer’s purchase order, sales invoice, or any other
documentation contained in the customer’s file. For the purposes of this letter, a “side
agreement” is any agreement, understanding, promise, or commitment, whether written
(e.g., in the form of a letter or formal agreement or in the form of any exchange of
physical or electronic communications) or oral, by or on behalf of SMG — DeVos Place
(or any subsidiary, director, employee, or agent of SMG) with a customer from whom
revenue has been recognized that is not contained in the written purchase order from the
customer or sales order confirmation and sales invoice of SMG — DeVos Place delivered
to or generated by the SMG — DeVos Place’s Accounting and Finance Department. The
definition of a side agreement is not limited by any particular subject matter. For
purposes of example only, any agreement not contained in the written purchase order
from the customer or sales order and sales invoice of SMG — DeVos Place that relates to
return rights, acceptance rights, future pricing, payment terms, free consulting, free
maintenance, or exchange rights would be a side agreement.

b. We are not aware of any commitments or concessions to a customer regarding pricing or
payment terms outside of the terms documented in the customer’s file

For the purpose of calculating the incentive fee, all interest income included in the
calculation is properly included and does not include any ineligible income.

For purpose of the special purpose financial statements, non-contractual expenses have been
approximately excluded from the special purpose Statement of Revenues and Expenses
arising from activities managed by SMG.




DRAFT Item 3.B.iv.

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Financial Statements

and Supplemental Material
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Draft 11/1/2011



DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Financial Statements

and Supplemental Material
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010



DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Contents
Independent Auditors’ Report 3
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 4-8
Financial Statements
Statements of Net Assets
as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 10
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 11
Statements of Cash Flows for the
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 12-13
Notes to Financial Statements 14-19

Supplemental Material

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets -
Budget and Actual for the Year Ended June 30, 2011 21



DRAFT

Independent Auditors’ Report

Members of the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority (the Authority), and the related statements of revenues, expenses
and changes in net assets, and cash flows, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2011 and
2010. These financial statements are the responsibility of management of the Authority. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the statements of net assets referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
at June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the years
then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the financial statements but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion
on it.

Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The schedule of revenue, expenses and changes in net assets -
budget and actual on page 21 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

, 2011
G:\Admin\Client\163858\2011\GR KCCAA 2011 fst.docx
BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. ber of BDO | ional Limited, a UK comp limited by g , and forms part of
the intemational BDO network of independent member firms.
BDO is the brand name for the 8DO network and for each of the BOO Member Firms.

3




DRAFT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This section of the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority’s (the “Authority”)
financial report presents a discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial performance for the
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. This discussion has been prepared by management, along
with the financial statements and related footnote disclosures, and should be read in conjunction
therewith. This discussion and analysis is designed to focus on current activities, resulting changes
and currently known facts. The financial statements, footnotes and this discussion are the
responsibility of Authority management.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This financial report consists of three financial statements along with footnotes to the financial
statements. One of the most important questions asked about the Authority’s finances is whether
the Authority is better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities. The keys to
understanding this question are the statements of net assets, the statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net assets, and the statements of cash flows. These statements include
all assets and liabilities of the Authority using the full accrual basis of accounting.

The statements of net assets present all the Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in the Authority’s net
assets are one indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or
deteriorating.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets present information showing how
the Authority’s net assets changed during the year. Revenues are reported when earned and
expenses when incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Activities are reported
as operating or non-operating. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing
services. All other revenues and expenses are reported as non-operating.

The statements of cash flows present changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from
operating, financing and investing activities. These statements present cash receipts and cash
disbursements information, without consideration of the earnings event, when an obligation
arises, or depreciation of capital assets.

The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that is
essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes present
information about the Authority’s accounting policies, significant account balances and activities,
material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and subsequent events, if any.

Analysis of the Authority

The Authority’s total net assets increased from $24,779,004 in 2009 to $25,517,235 in 2010 and
decreased to $23,676,993 in 2011. These changes result primarily from operations, as well as some
carryover of minor improvements related to the completion of the DeVos Place construction
project in 2010 and the major concourse renovation project at Van Andel Arena during 2011. Our
analysis below focuses on the net assets and changes in net assets of the Authority.



DRAFT

Statements of Net Assets

June 30, 2011 2010 2009
Assets

Current assets $ 27,391,426 S 28,934,023 S 30,447,743

Capital assets, net 1,611,131 788,841 659,549
Total Assets 29,002,557 29,722,864 31,107,292
Liabilities

Current liabilities 5,325,564 4,205,629 6,328,288
Net Assets

Invested in capital assets 1,611,131 788,841 659,549

Restricted - - 80,000

Unrestricted 22,065,862 24,728,394 24,039,455
Total Net Assets $ 23,676,993 S 25,517,235 S 24,779,004
Current Assets

The decrease in current assets from 2009 to 2010 generally resulted from a large decrease in
advance ticket sales for events sold but not yet held at year-end, the related cash from which is
held in box office escrow accounts until shows are settled. The decrease from 2010 to 2011 was
directly related to an aggressive capital improvement campaign undertaken to provide for
excellent customer experience at both facilities.

Current Liabilities

The decrease in current liabilities from 2009 to 2010 was largely due to the timing of advance
ticket sales, advance deposits and settlement balances payable to customers for facility events,
which decreased a total of $2,434,000 from 2009 to 2010. For 2011, this trend reversed resulting
in a large increase of approximately $1,281,000 in advance ticket sales, advance deposits and
settlement balances payable to customers for facility events.

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets

Investments in capital assets of approximately $660,000 at June 30, 2009, $789,000 at June 30,
2010 and $1,611,000 at June 30, 2011 include the historical acquisition costs net of accumulated
depreciation of movable building improvements and equipment not pledged as collateral on
related bonds. See Note 4 for information related to capital assets.

Restricted Net Assets

Restricted net assets in 2009 included funds pledged by the Authority for improvements at Van
Andel Arena in conjunction with stipulations of a lease agreement with one of Van Andel Arena’s
continuing tenants. Per the contract terms, improvements such as production equipment, laser
lighting, enhanced video capabilities and similar items can be purchased using these restricted net
assets, which may be used by the tenant and any of its affiliates free of charge. Contributions
totaling $80,000, received in installments of $10,000 per specific event, were recorded as
miscellaneous revenue for the year ended June 30, 2008. Although the lease agreement continued

5



DRAFT

in 2009, all related events were canceled and, therefore, no new installments were received
during the year. Balances were carried forward to 2010 until the lease agreement was terminated,
at which time the reserve was reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Unrestricted Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets include funds that have been designated by management for specific
purposes, as well as amounts that have been contractually committed for goods and services that
have not yet been received. The following is a breakdown of the unrestricted net assets as of
June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

2011 2010 2009
Undesignated $ 6,000,000 S 6,000,000 S 6,000,000
Facility replacement reserve 16,065,862 18,728,394 18,039,455
Total Unrestricted Net Assets $ 22,065,862 S 24,728,394 S 24,039,455

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

June 30, 2011 2010 2009
Operating revenues, facilities $ 10,347,658 S 10,642,285 S 10,583,273
Operating expenses 11,440,080 10,180,281 10,073,334
Operating income (loss) (1,092,422) 462,004 509,939
Non-operating revenues

Other non-operating income 354,587 457,262 822,625
Income (loss) before transfers out (737,835) 919,266 1,332,564
Transfer of constructed assets (1,102,407) (181,035) (158,308)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (1,840,242) 738,231 1,174,256
Net Assets, beginning of year 25,517,235 24,779,004 23,604,748
Net Assets, end of year $ 23,676,993 S 25,517,235 S 24,779,004

Operating Income (Loss)
Operating Revenues, Facilities

Operating revenues, facilities are generated by the Authority’s DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena.
Management of these facilities is provided by SMG, headquartered in Philadelphia and an affiliate
of American Capital Strategies, Ltd., with whom the Authority has a management agreement.
Operating revenues include event revenues as well as ancillary revenues related to luxury seating,
advertising and commissions on vendor sales of food, beverages and novelties. Although the two
facilities continue to remain popular, revenues slightly decreased from 2010 to 2011 primarily due
to the economic situation that surrounds the geographic area; the total number of events held at
Van Andel Arena has decreased; however, increases in events at DeVos Place have offset the



DRAFT

decreases. In general, spending by patrons and advertisers has increased slightly on a combined
basis.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses include costs associated with the daily operation and continual upgrade and
maintenance of DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena, as well as administrative costs related to the
overall operation of the Authority. For 2011, operating costs increased significantly more than the
related revenues primarily due to an aggressive upgrade and improvement agenda for both
facilities that included many repairs and maintenance projects. Generally, administrative costs
relate to insurance, personal services and professional services.

Non-Operating Revenues

Non-operating revenues result primarily from investment income. As cash is generated by
operations, the Authority gauges future cash flow needs and invests “excess” cash as available to
maximize return and value for the Authority. Although the Authority was able to increase its
investment of excess cash during 2010, given the changes in market conditions, investment
returns were less than anticipated and less than the prior year, resulting in a decrease in
investment income from 2009 to 2010. The less than favorable investment return climate
continued throughout 2011 and was primarily responsible for the decrease in non-operating
revenues from 2010.

Transfer of Constructed Assets

Bonds issued by the City County Building Authority and the Downtown Development Authority are
collateralized by assets and construction expenses associated with DeVos Place Convention Center
and Van Andel Arena, respectively. During fiscal years 2009, 2010 and 2011, construction expenses
of $158,000, $181,000 and $1,102,400, respectively, were transferred to the City County Building
Authority. When the bonds issued by the City County Building Authority have been retired, title to
both the Arena and DeVos Place will be conveyed to the Authority.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

Management believes the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority is in good
condition both administratively and financially. This report covers the ninth and tenth years of
operation. The Authority’s operations and finance committees continue to monitor policies and
practices governing facility rates, booking preferences and quality of service. Consolidated
operating revenues at DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena continue to exceed operating expenses on
an annual basis. Long-term booking activity, enhanced by the services of the Grand Rapids/Kent
County Convention and Visitor’s Bureau, continues to draw commitments for convention center
activity, which is now booking through calendar year 2016.

The Authority’s facilities include a 12,000+ seat capacity Van Andel Arena, a 2,400 seat DeVos
Performance Hall, a 685 parking space facility below the convention center complex, a 160,000
square foot full-service exhibit hall, related meeting rooms offering over 24,000 square feet of
additional space, as well as a 40,000 square foot batlroom.

The fiscal year 2012 (year beginning July 1, 2011) budget forecasts operating revenues of $10.7
million with operating expenses (before depreciation) of $10.4 million. Debt service obligations
related to Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place Convention Center are being financed by the Grand
Rapids Downtown Development Authority and the City County Building Authority.



DRAFT

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances and
show the Authority’s accountability for the revenue it earns. Questions about this report or
requests for additional financial information should be directed to the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority’s Administrative Manager at 303 Monroe Avenue NW, Grand Rapids,
Michigan 49503.



DRAFT

Financial Statements




DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Statements of Net Assets

June 30, 2011 2010

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 3,999,147 S 3,654,426
Investments (Note 2) 21,346,338 23,312,637
Accounts receivable, net (Note 3) 1,851,334 1,746,411
Prepaid expenses 194,607 220,549
Total current assets 27,391,426 28,934,023

Capital assets (Note 4):

Buildings and structures 322,431 322,431
Equipment 2,448,072 1,472,165
Less accumulated depreciation (1,159,372) (1,005,755)
Net capital assets 1,611,131 788,841
Total Assets 29,002,557 29,722,864

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable (Note 5) 840,928 944,063
Accrued expenses (Note 5) 1,272,330 1,331,504
Advance ticket sales 1,293,077 501,889
Advance deposits 346,292 283,445
Compensated absences 4,845 3,247
Deferred revenue 1,568,092 1,141,481
Total Liabilities 5,325,564 4,205,629
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets 1,611,131 788,841
Unrestricted 22,065,862 24,728,394
Total Net Assets $ 23,676,993 S 25,517,235

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

10



DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Year ended June 30, 2011 2010

Operating Revenues, facilities $ 10,347,658 $ 10,642,285

Operating Expenses

Personnel services 3,741,550 3,670,904
Utilities 2,429,032 2,282,671
Supplies and expenses 1,804,062 659,653
Contractual services (Note 7) 2,543,191 2,698,065
Depreciation 153,617 104,790
Repairs and maintenance 690,931 689,519
Professional services 77,697 74,679
Total Operating Expenses 11,440,080 10,180,281
Operating income (loss) (1,092,422) 462,004

Non-Operating Revenues

Investment income 201,932 334,150

Miscellaneous 152,655 123,112
Total Non-Operating Revenues 354,587 457,262
Income (loss) before transfers out (737,835) 919,266
Transfer of Constructed Assets to the City County Building Authority (1,102,407) (181,035)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (1,840,242) 738,231
Net Assets, beginning of the year 25,517,235 24,779,004
Net Assets, end of the year $ 23,676,993 S 25,517,235

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

1"



DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2011 2010
Cash From (for) Operating Activities

Cash received from facility operations $ 11,354,125 S 8,501,170

Payments to employees (3,629,129) (3,619,384)

Payments to suppliers and contractors (7,622,847) (6,203,899)
Net Cash From (for) Operating Activities 102,149 (1,322,113)
Cash From (for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

Capital assets constructed (1,102,407) (181,035)

Purchases of capital assets (975,907) (234,082)

Other receipts 152,655 123,112
Net Cash for Capital and Related Financing Activities (1,925,659) (292,005)
Cash From (for) Investing Activities

Interest and dividends 201,932 334,150

Proceeds from investment maturities 3,175,000 2,040,000

Purchases of investments (1,208,701) (2,500,016)
Net Cash (From) for Investing Activities 2,168,231 (125,866)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 344,721 (1,739,984)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of the year 3,654,426 5,394,410
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of the year $ 3,999,147 $ 3,654,426

(continued)

12



DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2011 2010
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash From (for)
Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) $ (1,092,422) 462,004
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash from (for)
operating activities:
Depreciation 153,617 104,790
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net (104,923) 249,436
Prepaid expense 25,942 (15,684)
Accounts payable (103,135) 244,143
Accrued expenses (59,174) 252,587
Advance ticket sales 791,188 (2,532,047)
Advance deposits 62,847 5,810
Compensated absences 1,598 (946)
Deferred revenues 426,611 (92,206)
Net Cash From (for) Operating Activities $ 102,149 (1,322,113)
Non-Cash Transactions
Transfer of constructed assets to the City County Building Authority $ 1,102,407 (181,035)

13



DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of the Authority

The Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the “Authority”) was created by the
City of Grand Rapids (the “City”) and the County of Kent (the “County”), Michigan under the
provisions of Act 203 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1999 effective June 20, 2000. The Authority
was established for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, improving, enlarging, renewing,
replacing, repairing, financing, refinancing, equipping and operating convention facilities
(including all or part of, or any combination of, a convention hall, auditorium, arena, meeting
rooms, exhibition area and related adjacent public areas together with appurtenant property
including parking lots and structures) and real property on which they are located.

The Authority includes the operations of DeVos Place which provides space for conventions,
concerts, meetings and other performances. Capital assets of DeVos Place were transferred to the
City County Building Authority (the “CCBA”) where they are pledged until the related bonds are
retired in 2031. At that time, ownership of these capital assets will be transferred to the
Authority.

The Authority also includes the operations of the Van Andel Arena (the “Arena”) which provides
space for conventions, concerts, sporting events, meetings and other performances. The Grand
Rapids Downtown Development Authority (the “DDA”) maintains ownership of certain capital
assets until the CCBA bonds are retired in 2031 according to the terms of the operating agreement
signed by the CCBA, DDA and the Authority. At that time, ownership of these capital assets will be
transferred to the Authority.

Basis of Presentation

The Authority is a special-purpose entity that uses proprietary fund reporting. Proprietary funds
distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with the proprietary funds’ principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the Authority’s proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The Authority uses the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The Authority follows applicable accounting and financial reporting standards of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued through November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”)
pronouncements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, the Authority has elected not to
follow FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989. Instead, the Authority follows
pronouncements issued by the GASB.

14



DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Notes to Financial Statements

Budget

Public Act 203 of 1999 requires the Authority to adopt an annual budget. The budget is adopted on
the accrual basis of accounting.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority considers cash and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents for the statements of cash flows.

Investments and Accrued Interest

The Authority participates in the Kent County Investment Pool (the “Pool”) which is managed by
the County Treasurer. investments underlying the Pool consist primarily of certificates of deposit
and U.S. Treasury notes, which are carried at fair value. The Pool is not subject to regulatory
oversight, is not registered with the SEC and does not issue separate financial statements. The fair
value of the Authority’s position in the Pool is the same as the value of the Pool shares, and
includes accrued interest. The Authority also has investments in money market mutual funds.

Capital Assets

Capital assets having a useful life in excess of one year and whose costs exceed $10,000 are
capitalized. All assets are reported at historical cost except for donated assets, which are
recorded at fair value. Depreciation and amortization are computed by the straight-line method
based on the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Estimated useful lives of the related assets by asset category are as follows:

Years
Buildings and structures 1-34
Equipment 3-10

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, whereas major
additions are capitalized.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. Net assets are reported as

15



DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Notes to Financial Statements

restricted when limitations are imposed on their use either through legislation or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.

Revenue, Expenditures and Expense
Compensated Absences

Employees are credited with 20 days of vacation each calendar year, which cannot be carried
over. Accrued compensated absences totaled $4,845 and $3,247 at June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Revenues

The Authority records facilities revenue upon completion of the event at DeVos Place or the
Arena. Accordingly, amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits are recorded as
deferred revenue until that time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as pre-paid
expenses and charged to expense upon completion of the event.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through , 2011, the date these
financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Cash and Investments
Deposits

State statutes require that certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts and
depository receipts are made with banks doing and having a place of business in the State of
Michigan, which are also members of a federal or national insurance corporation.

Custodian Credit Risk Related to Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits might
not be recovered. The Authority minimizes custodial credit risk by pre-qualifying financial
institutions. At June 30, 2011, $1,788,880 of the Authority’s bank balances of $2,494,863 was
uninsured and uncollateralized. At June 30, 2010, $1,498,895 of the Authority’s bank balances of
$2,143,027 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments

State statutes authorize the Authority to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and
instrumentalities, commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the two highest
classifications established by not less than two standard rating services, bankers’ acceptances of
U.S. banks, United States government or federal agency obligation repurchase agreements,
obligations of the State of Michigan or any of its political subdivisions rated as investment grade
by not less than one standard rating service, and mutual funds composed of the types of
investment vehicles named previously. The Authority’s investment in money market mutual funds,
which have a maturity of less than one year, at June 30, 2011 and 2010, was $1,640,240 and
$1,639,984, respectively.

16



DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Notes to Financial Statements

At June 30, 2011, the Authority’s investment in the Kent County Investment Pool had a fair value
of $21,346,338 and a maturity of less than one year. At June 30, 2010, the Authority’s investment
in the Kent County Investment Pool had a fair value of $23,312,637 and a maturity of less than one
year. The Authority’s interest in money market mutual funds, which have a maturity of less than
one year, as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 was $1,640,240 and $1,639,984, respectively.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the market value of securities will fall due to changes in market
interest rates. The Authority mitigates interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio so that
securities mature to meet cash requirements, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities prior to
maturity and by investing in shorter-term securities.

Custodial Credit Risk Related to Investments

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Authority
will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of an outside
party. The Authority had no investments subject to custodial credit risk at June 30, 2011 or 2010.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The Authority mitigates credit risk by limiting investments to the safest types of
securities, pre-qualifying financial institutions and diversifying the portfolio. The Pool is not rated,
but the money market mutual funds are rated AAAm by S&P.

3. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

2011 2010
Facility customers/events $ 1,084,606 S 1,049,825
Ancillary revenues 847,968 774,517
Allowance (81,240) (77,931)

$ 1,851,334 S 1,746,411

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.

17



DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Notes to Financial Statements

4, Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was as follows:

Balance
Balance Disposals/ June 30,
July 1, 2010 Additions Transfers 2011
Cost of capital assets

Buildings and structures S 322,431 $ -9 -5 322,431
Equipment 1,472,165 975,907 - 2,448,072
Total Cost of Capital Assets 1,794,596 975,907 - 2,770,503

Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and structures 297,447 9,993 - 307,440
Equipment 708,308 143,624 - 851,932
Total Accumulated Depreciation 1,005,755 153,617 - 1,159,372
Capital Assets, net ) 788,841 § 822,290 § -$ 1,611,131
Balance
Balance Disposals/ June 30,
July 1, 2009 Additions Transfers 2010

Cost of capital assets

Buildings and structures ) 322,431 § -9 - S 322,431
Equipment 1,238,083 234,082 - 1472,165
Total Cost of Capital Assets 1,560,514 234,082 - 1,794,596

Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and structures 287,454 9,993 - 297,447
Equipment 613,511 94,797 - 708,308
Total Accumulated Depreciation 900,965 104,790 - 1,005,755
Capital Assets, net ) 659,549 S 129,292 § ) 788,841

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.

18



DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Notes to Financial Statements

5. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable at June 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

2011 2010
Professional services S 10,738 S 1,000
Facility customers 546,010 600,427
Vendors 284,180 342,636

$ 840,928 S 944,063

Accrued expenses at June 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

2011 2010
Facility customers $ 320,308 S 435,146
Vendors 403,255 455,410
Professional services 59,799 62,803
Salaries and benefits 488,968 378,145

$ 1,272,330 S 1,331,504

6. Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of and damage to assets,
errors and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters. The Authority carries insurance
for most risks of loss, including employee life, health and accident insurance. Settled claims have
not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

The Authority has entered into an agreement with SMG to manage the operations of DeVos Place
and the Arena through June 30, 2014,

The Authority pays SMG an annual base management fee and an incentive fee based on the results
of operations of DeVos Place and the Arena. For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, total management and incentive fees earned by SMG were approximately $320,834
and $555,700 and are recorded in contractual services expense.

The Authority is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in

the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will
not have a material effect on the financial position of the Authority.

19



DRAFT

Supplemental Material




DRAFT

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual

Variance
Favorable

Year ended June 30, 2011 Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Operating Revenues, facilities $ 10,566,383 $ 10,347,658 S (218,725)
Operating Expenses

Personnel services 3,638,628 3,741,550 (102,922)

Utilities 2,359,800 2,429,032 (69,232)

Supplies and expenses 502,100 1,804,062 (1,301,962)

Contractual services 2,689,595 2,543,191 146,404

Depreciation - 153,617 (153,617)

Repairs and maintenance 718,608 690,931 27,677

Professional services 214,200 77,697 136,503
Total Operating Expenses 10,122,931 11,440,080 (1,317,149)
Operating income 443,452 (1,092,422) (1,535,874)
Non-Operating Revenues

Investment income 495,000 201,932 (293,068)

Miscellaneous 30,000 152,655 122,655
Total non-operating revenues 525,000 354,587 (170,413)
Transfer of Constructed Assets to the City County

Building Authority ' (4,085,000) 1,102,407 2,982,593
Net non-operating revenues (3,560,000) 747,820 2,812,180
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (3,116,548) 1,840,242 1,276,306
Net Assets, beginning of the year 25,517,235 25,517,235 -
Net Assets, end of the year $ 22,400,687 $ 23,676,993 $ 1,276,306

" The budget and actual presentation includes construction expenses, which are generally capitalized under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

21



B.v.

*SULIL JIGUIAW OGT W JO YB3 J0) PUR IOMISU OJF SY) JO} weu pueiq 343 S1 049

UL JAQUIDUS 3UIPUBdIPUL JO HIOMIBU OGY JRUCHIBUIRILL DY)
10 1ed suuoy pue *a3juesens Aq paywiy Auedwod N e ‘a3 jeuoneiaul 0ga JO Jaquiaw ' ays st *diyssourted Kwigen pastw asemelaq e ‘d11 ‘vsn 008

Q
m

™
£
@
=

1 10T ‘0€ {unf
s1Jey) JuaWwalrl§ jeidueuL

AlLI04lny eua.ly/UOLJUSAUO)
AJuno7 Juay - spidey pue.n




I_ | 98ed

odd

S}OSSY 39N |eJ0L - SOIMjiqel]jeloLm  SISSSY|el0L m
1002 8002 600T 0L0z 1102
0$

000°S$

000°01$

L 000°GL$

- 000°0Z$

000°SZ$

000°0€$

L) ooo‘se$

(spuesnoys ut) §39SSY }9N JO Juswajels



I_ 7 98ed

SaNUaA3Y SuLleladO-UON m SONUaA3Y Sunjelado m

£00Z 8002 6002 010z 1102

0$

000°C$

L 000°V$

000°9$

000°8$

L 000°0L$

L 000°ZL$

(spuesnoyl u) SONUIADY



EE—— € aded

odad

G.$ - S9I1AI3S |eUOISSDJ0id m %9

689$ - @oueudjuiey pue siieday m

S01$ - uonedaideq m

869°T$ - S9IIAISS |en3deauo)
099$ - sasuadx3 pue sa)ddng

[A:TAAREL NI

LL9‘ES - SIIIAIIS |BUUOSIDd m _

%l %L %}

8/$ - S3JIAISS [eUOISSIJ0Id B

069$ - @3ueuajuey pue sijeday =

pG51LS - uonedaidag m

£¥G°TS$ - SIIAIAS |ENIDRIIUOD 1
$08°1$ - sasuadxy pue sajddng

6Ty‘TS -senNnN e

TPLIES - SIS [UUOSIAd

10T

(spuesnoyy uy) sasuadx3 sulyesadQ



$13ssy JaN ul aguey) INQ siajsuel] sosuadxgm SSNUAAIY m

£007 8002 6007 (1] 1174 110z

- 000°TS-

0$

L 000°Z%

L 000'v$

- 000°9$

- 000°8$

- 000°01$

L 000°Z1$

- 000°v1$

(spuesnoys ur) S33sSY 39N Ul (9seatdaq) asealdu|



Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Audit Wrap-Up

June 30, 2011

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO intemational Limited,
a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent I B D O
member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.




Tel: 616-774-7000 200 Ottawa Avenue NW, Suite 300
Fax: 616-776-3680 Grand Rapids, Mt 49503
A www.bdo.com

November 4, 2011

Members of the Board of Directors
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

Dear Board Members:

Professional standards require us to communicate with you regarding matters related to the
financial statement audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant and relevant to
your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. The following documents
various matters with respect to the wrap-up phase of the audit of the annual financial
statements of Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the Authority) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2011,

The following communication was prepared as part of our audit, has consequential
limitations, and is intended solely for the information and use of those charged with
governance and, if appropriate, management of the Authority and is not intended and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Should you desire further information concerning these matters, we will be happy to meet
with you at your convenience.

Very truly yours,

220 wusd (1P

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by g , and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.



Discussion Outline

Page
Status of Our Audit 3
Results of Our Audit 4
Required Communications - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 5
Required Communications 6-7

Independence Communication

Significant Accounting and Reporting Matters

BDO Resources




Status of Our Audit

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e We have substantially completed our audit of the financial statements of Grand Rapids - Kent
County Convention/Arena Authority (the Authority) for the year ended June 30, 2011. Our audit
was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. This audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those
charged with governance of their responsibilities.

« We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion about whether the financial
statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of the Board of
Directors are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. We expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the financial statements
and release our report early in November 2011.

* The objective of our audit was to obtain reasonable - not absolute - assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatements. The scope of the work
performed was substantially the same as that described to you in our earlier Audit Planning
Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND COMPLIANCE

» In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Authority for the year
ended June 30, 2011 in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, we considered the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

e Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described above and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses.

3
AUDIT WRAP-UP - JUNE 30, 2011



Results of Our Audit

We have reviewed the accounting practices, which include policies, estimates and financial
statement disclosures, management has identified to be the most critical and concur with
management’s assessment. These include:

Primary Areas of Focus and Considerations
Cash and investments - we confirmed the existence of cash and investments with third parties.

Capital assets - we reconciled the roll-forward and tested additions and depreciation.

Accruals and expense - we analyzed the accruals and tested the calculations. We performed
analytical procedures on expenses.

Deferred revenue - we tested the propriety of deferred revenues.

Revenue - we analyzed the accounts and tested the calculations.

4
AUDIT WRAP-UP - JUNE 30, 2011



Required Communications - Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting

We are required to communicate, in writing, to the Board of Directors all material weaknesses and
significant deficiencies that have been identified in the Authority’s internal controls over financial
reporting. The definitions of material weakness, significant deficiencies and control deficiencies
follow:

A deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis.

Material Weakness

A deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control that is
Significant Deficiency less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a
Deficiency in Internal control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course
Control of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct misstatements on a timely basis.

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements, we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

5
AUDIT WRAP-UP - JUNE 30, 2011



Required Communications

MATTERS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Professional guidance requires independent auditors to communicate with those charged with
governance certain matters in relation to an audit. Following is a summary of those required items,
along with specific discussion points as they pertain to the Authority:

Requirement Discussion Points

Auditors’ judgment about the
quality of the Authority’s
accounting policies, estimates
and financial statement
disclosures

Critical accounting policies and
practices

Adoption of a change in
accounting principle

Material, corrected
misstatements brought to the
attention of management by
the auditor

Uncorrected misstatements,
other than those the auditor
believes to be trivial

Disagreements with
management

Consultations with other
accountants

Major issues discussed with
management prior to retention

Significant difficulties
encountered during the audit

In accordance with applicable auditing standards, a discussion
was held regarding the quality of financial reporting, which
included the Authority’s significant accounting practices,
estimates and financial statement disclosures.

Critical accounting policies and practices are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

The Authority did not adopt any changes in accounting
principles.

There were no misstatements brought to the attention of
management by the auditor.

There were no uncorrected misstatements.

There were no disagreements with management on financial
accounting and/or reporting matters and auditing procedures
that, if not satisfactorily resolved, would cause a modification of
our auditors’ reports.

We are not aware of any consultations about accounting or
auditing matters between management and other independent
public accountants. Nor are we aware of opinions obtained by
management from other independent public accountants on the
application of generally accepted accounting principles.

Prior to our being retained as auditor for the current fiscal year,
there were no major accounting or other issues of concern
discussed with management.

There were no significant difficulties encountered during the
audit.

6
AUDIT WRAP-UP - JUNE 30, 2011



Required Communications (continued)

Requirement Discussion Points

Representations requested The management representation letter will be provided when we
from management conclude our audit.

Other issues arising from the There were no other issues arising from the audit that we

audit the auditor considers consider significant and relevant to those charged with
significant and relevant to governance.

those charged with governance

Material alternative accounting There was no discussion with management concerning alternative
treatments discussed with accounting treatments.
management

Independence Communication

Our engagement letter dated August 25, 2011 describes our responsibilities in accordance with
professional standards and certain regulatory authorities with regard to independence and the
performance of our services. This letter also stipulates the responsibilities of the Authority with
respect to independence as agreed to by the Authority. Please refer to that letter for further
information.

7
AUDIT WRAP-UP - JUNE 30, 2011



Significant Accounting and Reporting
Matters

STATEMENT NO. 62 OF THE GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
BOARD CODIFICATION OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING
GUIDANCE CONTAINED IN PRE-NOVEMBER 30, 1989 FASB AND AICPA
PRONOUNCEMENTS

¢ Incorporates relevant legacy guidance into the GASB standards.

FASB statements and interpretations used before 11/30/89 (through FAS 102 and FiN 38).
APB opinions and ARB issued before 11/30/89 (through APB Opinion 31 and ARB 51).
Unless they contradict or conflict with GASB standards.

Excludes subsequent amendments to pronouncements.

o Effective for years beginning July 1, 2012.

GASB STATEMENT NO. 63, FINANCIAL REPORTING OF DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

GASB Concepts Statement No. 4 introduced and defined these elements:

Deferred outflows are consumptions of net assets that are applicable to a future reporting
period.

Deferred inflows are acquisition of net assets that are applicable to a future reporting
period.

These elements do not include items such as prepaid rent or deferred revenue because net
assets have not been consumed or acquired.

This pronouncement amends GASB Statement No. 34 to incorporate these elements:

Deferred outflows should be reported in financial statements in a separate section following
assets.

Deferred inflows should be reported in separate section following liabilities.
Net position replaces net assets and represents the difference between all other elements.

Currently, the only deferred inflows/outflows identified by GASB are related to derivatives and
service concession arrangements.

Effective for years beginning July 1, 2012.

8
AUDIT WRAP-UP - JUNE 30, 2011



BDO Resources

BDO is a national professional services firm providing assurance, tax, financial advisory and
consulting services to a wide range of publicly traded and privately held companies. Guided by core
values including competence, honesty and integrity, professionalism, dedication, responsibility and
accountability for 100 years, we have provided quality service and leadership through the active
involvement of our most experienced and committed professionals.

The firm serves clients through 40 offices and more than 400 independent alliance firm locations
nationwide. As an independent Member Firm of BDO International Limited, BDO serves multinational
clients through a global network of 1,082 offices in 119 countries. BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited
liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by
guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. BDO is
the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. For further
information, please refer to http://www.bdo.com/about/.

Below is a summary of just some of the many resources BDO makes available at no additional charge
to our clients. To subscribe to BDO publications, please use our RSS (Really Simple Syndication) Feeds
or complete registration at BDO’s Subscription Center at https://subscriptions.bdo.com/.

BDO KNOWS FINANCIAL REPORTING LETTERS AND FLASH REPORTS

Our BDO Knows financial reporting newsletters address significant financial reporting developments,
relating to both public and private businesses, that occur throughout the year. In addition, our Flash
reports are intend to highlight certain financial reporting developments in a timely and brief “flash”
format.

TAX ALERTS AND NEWSLETTERS

BDO’s National Tax Organization (NTO) provides a multitude of alerts and newsletters spanning
considerations involving expatriate, federal, state and local jurisdictions and includes such areas as
compensation and benefits, and credits and incentives. NTO further provides Tax Seminars/Webinars
on a variety of topics, whose archives are readily available to clients and contacts.

INDUSTRY PUBLICATIONS

BDO’s industry publications are numerous and span the sectors of technology, finance, insurance,
health care, retail and consumer products, governmental/nonprofit and real estate, among many
others.

For a complete listing of services, publications, archives of various webinars and events and other
information regarding BDO, please visit http://www.bdo.com/ for further information.

9
AUDIT WRAP-UP - JUNE 30, 2011



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY

Item 4

DATE ‘11 EVENT EC | MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Nov 2 Griffins vs Lake Erie GC | TODD | Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
JW Marriott DG East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Zatkoff Seals Packing West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Michigan Office Solutions MOS Corner Office | 6P-9:30P Banquet
Thur, Nov 3 Available
Fri, Nov 4 Rock and Worship Roadshow GC | EDDIE | Arena 8:00 PM Rigging call
9:00 AM Load-in
1:00 PM Chair set
3:30 PM Volunteer arrival/training
5:00 PM Security meeting
5:30 PM VIP doors
6:00 PM Public Doors Open
7:15 PM Youth Pastor Reception
7:30P-10P Performance
10P-10:10P Intermission
10:10P-11P Performance
10:30 PM Load-out
DG Banquet C/D 8A-10P Backstage catering
Sat, Nov 5 Griffins vs Charlotte GC | EDDIE | Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-9:50P | Post-game skate
9:50P-10:10P | Post-game autographs
Lasers Resource DG Banquet C 6P-7P Banquet
East/West Nests 6P-10:10P Banquet
Cameo Kerr Suite 101A 6P-10:10P Banquet
Sun, Nové |\ itable &
Mon, Nov 7 Savor DG Banquet B 6P-7P TIPS training
Tue, Nov 8 Rockford Icehogs KA Arena 3P-5:30P Team practice
Wed, Nov 9 Griffins vs Rockford GC | LYNNE | Arena 11:00 AM Doors
12p-2:30P Hockey game
RM Banquet All 11A-12:30P | Senior bingo
Dell DG East Nest 11A-2:30P Banquet
Daktronics KA Arena 3:30P-5P Scoreboard maintenance
Thur, Nov 10 | Reba McEntire GC | CHRIS | Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Fri, Nov 11 Sesame Street Live GC | KATHY | Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Sat, Nov 12 Sesame Street Live GC | EDDIE | Arena 10:30 AM Performance
2:00 PM Performance
Sun, Nov 13 Sesame Street Live GC | CHRIS | Arena 1:00 PM Performance
4:30 PM Performance
Mon, Nov 14 | Available
Tue, Nov 15 Available
Wed, Nov 16 | Available
Thur, Nov 17 | Available
Fri, Nov 18 Griffins vs San Antonio GC | ROD Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Baker Perkins DG Crease Club 6P-9:30P Banquet
West Side Beer East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Medical Management Spec West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
MOS Corner Office
MSU On-Line Auction Winr Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet




Sat, Nov 19 Griffins vs Milwaukee GC | KATHY | Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-9:50P | Post-game skate
9:50P-10:10P | Post-game autographs

Milwaukee Admirals DG Banquet D 9:30P-10:30P | Post-game meal
Cara Waite East Nest 6P-10:10P Banquet
Michigan Kenworth West Nest 6P-10:10P Banquet
Perrigo MOS Corner Office | 6P-10:10P Banquet
Nordic Hot Tubs Suite 101A 6P-10:10P Banquet

Sun, Nov 20 Available

Mon, Nov 21 | Available

Tue, Nov 22 Available

Wed, Nov 23 | Griffins vs Hamilton GC | KATHY | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Thur, Nov 24 -:‘

Holiday

Fri, Nov 25 Griffins vs Oklahoma City GC | JIM Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

RLA Management DG East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Yellow Rose Transport West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
MOS Corner Office

Sat, Nov 26 Griffins KA Arena 12P-2:30P Team practice

Sun, Nov 27 | Griffins vs Oklahoma City GC | JIM Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
4:00 PM Doors
5P-7:30P Hockey game
7:30P-7:50P__| Post-game skate

Jaded 8 RM Crease Club 4P-6P Performance
Thrilling 30 Contest Winners DG West Nest 4P-7:50P Banquet
MOS Corner Office
Suite 101A

Mon, Nov 28 | Available

Tue, Nov 29 Available

Wed, Nov 30 | Available

Thur, Dec 1 Available

Fri, Dec 2 Griffins vs Toronto GC Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Home Depot DG Banquet C 6P-9:30P Banquet
Select Bank East Nest 4P-7:50P Banquet
Informs West Nest 4P-7:50P Banquet
Michigan Office Solutions MOS Corner Office | 4P-7:50P Banquet
Robert Wittum Suite 101A 4P-7:50P Banquet

Sat, Dec 3 Griffins vs Chicago GC Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
4:00 PM Doors
5P-7:30P Hockey game
7:30P-7:50P | Post-game autographs

KDP Retirement Plan Services DG East/West Nests 4P-7:50P Banquet
TMI Michigan Air Solutions Suite 101A/B 4P-7:50P Banquet

Sun, Dec 4

Available




[[eH 2ouruLIOLIdd SOAS(] = HAAQ

SWOo0Yy Funee 20IUO = -V NOIN

-V JOO[IBAQ IBATY = 4-V O

-V woolfjeq = -V TIvd

(4 H-V swooy Sunasi J0oo[sAQ = H-V 09D 4-V swooy Sunesp A19[en puelD = J-V DD O~V slieH #qIyxd = O~V Hd
uadp Aqqon wdoo:Z
‘153 SV uadQ sio00Q apisin0 wdog:9 HdAd Heouo) ut Asusiq g sdod SHO
ainpedag uad wd og:6
00T dn deipn pue sajes wd 00:6 -wd 00:G
-32uepusIY Jeulwag wd 00:S -we 00:6
: uonensibay we 00:6-we 00:8 -V Wooy 30Juoiy
‘153 ar [eAly JusID we og:2 Aqqo s0Juoy sa18ajens auluo
oov m;:tmammn_ Ewﬂ_“_o § Eamo“or N
. uoissag buluadQ wapQ:-g-wdpo:9 3-g Agjles) puelg
:@Pduepuany dn 1S Jopusp wdoo:0L-wdoo:g ERIIESET {1 og)
‘183 va [eAwy aI1D wdQo:} Aig)eo pueis lled VIDW/Awwns [jed INVDDD
¢ ainuedaq juald wdoo:0l
. 000’ uadQ moys wdoo:g-wen:6
-9duepusny [EALLY SI33JUN|OA weQo:g gog wooljeg
3| va [eAwy JualD weQg:/, Jsjua) ssauisng yieasm ay3 yjeauag ¥ AON T¥d
[esseayay wdpQ:0| — wdoo:L HdAQ
AV uj anop wdoo:g — wdpo:21L %00Q uoAYHdJAQ YasuoQ ul Aausiqg - sdod SHO
ainpeds( juald wdoo:0lL
000°€ uadp moys wdpo:g-wdoo: 1L
. uonoadsu| a4 wepo:0l
-aouepuny U] peoT J0pUaA wdgo:Z}-WeQo:, aog wooljeg
153 va [eALly Jual|D Wwepo:2 Jojuan) ssauisng yliealimn 3yl yiesuag
JOPLIOD B0ISS EEEYETIS)
va sjew yo doiq NoouanQ Asgjes) puels) lled YOW/Mwwns |jed INVIDD
uondasay wdpo:s — wdoo: Agjeo) pueis)
uoissnasig |aued wdoo:y — wdo):¢ 3-9 Agjjes pueid
ajoukayy wdgl:¢ — wdog:z 3-g A9jeo) pueis)
suoIssog wdg|:z - wdoo:L 4-0 YOousan)
INQ peoT sioNqiyxy wdoo:¢ — wdoo: | D lieH uquyx3
younq wdoo: | — wdoo:21L O lleH uquyx3
SUOISSag wdoo:Z1L — wesy:0l 4-9 joouano
Jealg wegiQlL —wegL:oL O lleH uqiyx3
002 40} dnjos aneay | axyuis o} suonesado Wepo:01- Weo:6 D IleH #quyx3
SuoISSag WeGL:0L - Wepo:6 4 -9 >joouan)
8|qelpunoy weQQ:6 — WweQo:g D lleH ¥qyx3
00¢ uadQ syqyx3 wdoo: | - weQo:8 O lleH Hquyx3
. wooy elpaiy wdoo:G — wepo:L 9 J0ooU3AD
-oduepuany uadQ uonexnsibay wepo:/ (souBNUT D IlBH) DO
3| oy [BAWIY JUB)D wepe:9 Kigjles puei 30ua13ju0) pue 0dx3 OIGYIIN | ¢ AON ‘SUNHL
IO anoW wepo:g) ~ wdgL:g %90Q UokHAAQ
Buubignealg pue j9N dlgnd wdg:0) — wdgL:6 kqqoT s8N0
19V puosag wdg):6 - wdog:g
1V Isuld wdg}:g — wdog:L
uadp Bunesg wdoo:2
000¢ uado Aqqo wdog:9

1107 — ATAIIM dASIATY

HOVIFSOAEA




I1eH 30uBULIONdd SOASQ = HAAQ

SWooy SUNSAIA S0IUO = -V NOW

J-V JOO[3AQ JoATY = -V OY

d-v wooljeg = d-v 1T1vd

¢ H-V swooy Sunesiy JOOIIAQ = H-V ODD d-V swooy Sunss A1s|[en pueln = -V DO O~V S[IeH #qIyxy = J-V HA
00 sijooQg Ndog:s
UI-BA0l JayD NdSP:S — Nd00'2
-JUBPUANY | oy [BALIE JUBIID Wd00:2} Q-V TIvd | uonony joyD) amyeusis sawi( Jo Yore 1107 L AON 'NOW
QO aroN wdpQ:g — wdoo:s %90Q UoATHJIAQ
00ST ouum:%ot& wdoo:s - Euoo“n HdAQ
. uadQ bunesg wdog:g
-duepuany uado Aqqon wdoo:g
‘3s3 NV uadQ sl1o0Qq apIsInO wdog:1 HdAQ Heouoy ui Asusiqg :z sdod SHO
ainpedaq juai) wd 0¢:6
00T dn deipa pue ssjes Em 00:6 -wd Q0:G
. Jeulwag wd Q0:G -we 00:6
-9duepuany uoneysibay we 00:6-Wwe 00:8 d-V Wooy a0Juopy
‘153 ar [eALly JualD we 0g:/ Aqqo souuopy sa18ajens auljuo
slauueg Joy) buey o) yerd uy
daud pue |eaute 1aa)unjoA
[eAule 3onJ) sawiq JO yolepn
[eAly Jusld
paupis/uauly/ j9s aq 0} s8|qe) 19U ||y Nd00:9 — WV00-0L
u| peo uoionpold WvO00:8
DY | S8Ige)} UDiS O} AL SBOIAIRG “JuoD Aemwy WV00:8 g — v wooljjeg uonoNY J3y3 AuNeusig sawiq Jo Yo 1107 9 AON 'NNS
00ST couuc%otmm wdoo:o0L - Euoo"w
. uadQ bunesg wdog:L
-9duepuany uado Agqqon wdoo:2
‘153 NV uadQ si100Qq apISINO wdog:e HdAQ paouon) ut Aausiqg 'z sdod SHO
ainpedaq juald wd 026
00T dn deipn pue sojeg Em 00:6 -wd 00:g
. Jeunwusg wd 00'S -we 006
:duepuanly uonessibay we 00:6-we 00:8 a-Y Wooy 20Juop
53 ar [eawy Juai|D we og:/ £qqoT @oJuop saigajesns auluo
InQ peo’ wdQQ:2-wdoo:g Agjes pueio
suoisseg wdoo:g-wdgi:| H-VY 099 pue 4-¥ 99
youn wdg|:L-wdog:z V H3 '3 uogoung-aid Oy
0ov 3d *® 09 usamiaq jlemie nd o} sdo weQz:0l 3-999
:35uepUalY suolssag wdoz:z|-weog:g H-V 099 bPue 4-¥ 99
uonessiboy wego:8 | uonoung-aid YOOUIAQ D9/O9 VUIIBJU0Y
‘353 va [BALLY JUBID weQg:/ A13)jes) puels tled VrOW/Mwwins jjed INVIDD
ainpedaq uaiD wdoo:LL
000 no umou JOPUSA Enmo“ L 1-wdoo:g
. uado moys wdoo-g-wep:6
-duepuanly [BALLIY SI99JUNJOA weQo:g ang wooljeg
153 va feAly JuaID weQg:2 J9)ua) ssauisng Yieasm 3y] yileauag S AON 'LVS
00sT aosueULIONdd wdgo:0}) — wdgo:g
‘dduepuanyy uadg bunesg wdog:z

[10C — ATAFIM dISIAFY
HOVTISOAHET




[IeH sdouewiopad SOAS(J = HAAQ SWooy Sundd] 0O = d-V NOW J-V JOO[I9AQ AR = J-V Od d-v wooljjed = -V T1vd

14 H-V Swooy Suied]y J0O[I9AQ = H-V 0DD 4-V swooy SuneeA A1sj[en pueln = 4-v DO O~V sileH ®qiyxyd = O-V HA
suoljejuasald 18]s0d pue paipn)g ase) wdog:y-wdog:z uonounj-ald gy woolijeg
uadQ |leH ¥qiyx3 wdpo:g-wdog:Z gy wooljleg
(p1) uoissag |e1oUdD) wdog:z-wdog: | 0 wooljeg
younT wdpg:L-wdog:z) Q wooljeg
(¢1) uoissag [e18uUdD) wdog:ZL-weoe: L1 9 wooljjeg
(z ) uoissag |eiaudn) wegQl:}L-wegL:0l 9 wooljjeg
0SL. (1) uoissag |esauan) WweQg:6-weQs:g 9 wooljeg
. Alqwassy [elaua) ‘jsepjealq ‘uonelsibay WeQG:g-wep:8 a wooljeq
:3duepusny u) peo] JOpUIA wdoQ:z-Wepo:s gV woosyeg BUOPEN :3JUI3JU0) pue moysapett
‘353 I [eALlY JUBD WeGy:9 ues|ydIN Jo uoeossy ale) yieay
U] peo JOpusp wdoQ:g-wdoo:¥ V lIeH 3qiyx3
[eAlly IO wdoo:¢ V lIeH ¥qiyx3
gy uj peo Jojei0oQ wdoo:-Wep0:6 V lleH 3qiyx3 0dx3 pUXI3M S3IPeT | o AON 'SUNHL
jesieayay wdoo:01 — wdog:/ AuoydwAs
H( jesieayay wdpo:g — wdog:e HdAd YJUIN S,udAoy}adg g |edISSE|D SHO
ar 13NONvd INd6S: 1 1-INV00:8 av 11vd SQAVMY FLAGIIL VOMA 6 AON 'dam
|[esieayay wdoo:0) — wdog:/ AuoydwAs
Hr uj aroy wdpQ:g — wdoo:L HdAd LJUIN S,usAoy}aag ‘¢ |eQISSE|D SHO
INQ peo uononpoid wdpQ:6 g-v wooijeq
weiboid wdgg:g-wdoo:g a-v wooljjeg
Jauuig wdgQ:g-wdQy:2 g-v wool|eg
QWOOdMA wdg:z-wdoo:2 a-v wooljjeg
Jopenp Buus wdpg:9 Blyooag/wooljjeg
1aueny) PUIMpPOOAA wdgy:g elyodag/wool|eq
slouoq Jo} si00Q pue sjedwini wdoy:9
SALLe Sjuapng wdog:9 Aqqo ysiapieang uoAi
(apts e1yoo9s isnr) 9 ‘g 'y 0} s100Q wdgz:g
uondsosy wdgo:2-wdoo:9 Aqqon elyoosg
¥09YD punog sioxeadg wdoo:9 ad-v wooljjeg
Jauuiqg sjuaidivay diysiejoyos-uoN wdpo:9 SWI00Y S0JUO
308y punog sajquiasu wdgl:g ad-v wooljjeg
[eAMIY JSUO|4 wdog:z @-v wooljegpoq uok
[BALLY JBIS UINED wdoo:z g-v wooljjeq
[BALUY UBUIT SUOISBD0() |ewads wdoo:1 d-v woollegniooq uok
Bulun] ouelq wdoo:1 a-v wooljjeg
. 00t Aaaljag weiboud weQo:0L ¥90(Q UOA]
-aduepusny JeALY JUSIID weQo:0L a-v woosjeg 4auuld
153 1 Ul peo UoKONPOoId wego:8 a-v wooyeg |  diyssejoyds |enuuy 383)|0D uiAe) 8 AON 'SANL
AV adueu3juUIe oueld Nd0E'S-NV0E'8 HdAd ONS
INo-aA0N WV00:21-Ad00:01
wesboig Nd00:0L — INdOE L
spejs Buydweg Nd00:9

110C — ATAHIM dISIATY
HOVIESOAEC]




[[BH 2ouruLIOLIdd SOAS( = HIAQ

SWooy Suraapy 30U = -V NOW

J-V JOO[IBAQ JoARY] = -V O

d-v wooljjed = J-V T1vd

S H-V swooy Suned J00lRAQ = H-V 0DD d-V swooy Suneap A1[en pueld = 4-V DO O~V S[IeH NqQIuxH = D~V HA
INJAT
g NOISSIS TVIINID A6S: 11-INV00:8 d711vd QYLD A19908/110Z T4 YFLHOAVM
MOYS Uolyseq wdpo:9 abejg uiepy
juny Jabuanedg apIA\ MOUS wdoo:¢-weQo:) | V lIBH }qiux3
0005 sleulwss wdy -z 'welL'0g:0l abejg uiepy
:23uepUANY SINOH Mmoysg wdoo:-weQ0:0 V lleH 3qiyx3
) P lleH Ul PSMOj|Y SIOPUSA weQo:6 V lIBH 3qiyx3
‘153 1T [eALy Juai|D weQ:6 odx3 pua)aam saipe
NOILJIOTY Nd6S 1 I-NV00:8 HSTAM
ar AANNIA Nd6S:11-INV00:8 v 11ve TIvd AVAHLYIE NSO
ainpedaq 9D wdog:0l 13)ua) ssauisng
Bunsspyy sapiwwo) Buuweisboid wdoo:0L-wdoo:9 g Aigjje puelis
Bunaasyy s10103.1Q JO pieog wdoo:0L-wdoo:9 v Aigjjeo) pueioy
IOW wdpo:9-wdoo: | 0 Aisjjeg puer9
Bunasspy a9)wwo) Buiwwesboid wdgpy:p-widoo: | g Asgjies puelo
Bunaay s10)a.1q JO pJeog wdg:-wdoo: ) v Aigjieo) puelo
va [eALLY Jual|D wdog:z1 I8)ua) ssauisng TTOZ OHNOV1D Z1 AON LVS
8oUBULIONdd Eamv"o - wdQo:8
uado Buneeg wdog:/ HdAQ
0021 reeqdn wdog:Z — wdoo:L I'eH Jeuoay
-3oueDU uado reaqdn/uado Aqqon wdsyig
-Juepuanly uad(Q s100Q 8pISINO wdog:9 HdAQ AuoydwAs
‘153 Hr dnjeg wdog:g ileH [euoay YIUIN S,usroyjesg g [BASSEID SHO
INFAT
80y NOISSIS TVIINTD Nd6S:11-INV00:8 d11ve OY.LID A199049/110Z T YTLHOTVM
ainyeds( jusl|n wdog: L1
SOpN|oUOD JUaA] wd 00:L L
uonoNy dAI wdoo:01 — wd 00:6
welboid / yassaq wd 00:6- wd 0¢:8
Jauuig /uonony sl wd pg:g — wdog:9
00€ uonensibay s uibag jusng wd 0¢€:9
] [EALLY JB3JUN|OA wdoo:9
-auepuany dn s wdog:€-Weoo:0L Aqqo1 e1yooeg
‘153 ar [BALLY J2JUNJOA/BALIY JUSID we 0¢:6 v wooJjieq uesIydI 40 SV VSA
MOYS uolyse4 wdoo:g abejg urepy
sleujwag wdp-widg | ‘wey | abejg uiep
000S Juny JoBusnedg apIM Moys wdoo:¢-weQo: | Y lleH ¥qiyx3
:9ouURpUINY SINOH moys wdpo:2-weg0:0} V IIeH 3qIyx3
) U| peoT JOpUaA WweQQ:6-wep0:g Y IIeH Hqyx3
W [EALLY JuSHD we0:g odx3 puayaam salpel 11 AON THd
|esieaysay wdo0:01 — wdog:Z AuoydwAs
H( BueH oI uoouwiayy ag.L HdAQ YIUIN s,usnroyjaag g |edIsSse|d SHO
N AINNIA N6S-11-WV00:8 i-vV DD SITION FTIHOIN NNJYOINI
INO PeoT JOpUdA wdgo:9-wdoo:c gy wooljeg

1102 — ATAHIM dISIATY
HOVTESOAHC




[[eH 90UBULIONS] SOAST = HAAQ

Swooy Suresy 30MUOA = -V NOW

4-V JOOHRAQ A = 4-V OY

@-v wooljjed = d-V T1vd

9 H-V swooy SunssjAl JOOIAQ = H-V 0DD d-V swooy unespy A1s[[en pueln = J-V DO J-V S[IeH ¥qiyxd = D~V HA
09 ay] uQ buiwiea wdoo:6-weQ0:6 | uonouny-aid JOOU3AQ ‘© 099
sa|qel oju| wdQo:5-wep0:6 uolOUN 4-91d YOOUSAQ J1BAIY
00S Bunesy ssauisng wepQ:0lL-wepe:s Vv woojjeg
. u| ¥oayo Bunsay ssauisng WeQe:g-wepo:g Aqqon elyooeg
-Sduepuany uf peo Jouqiyx3 wdpQ:g-Wwego:s @08 wooljeg
353 va [eAlly uBlD wegpg:/ JojuaY) ssauisng TTOZ OHNIV1D
o): | IOVIOLS Nd6S:11-INV00:8 d-v NOW TVALLSTd QOO % INIM 110T 1 AON 'NOW
1NO JAON WVTZI-Nd6
FONVNIOIIAd Nd6-WdL
AV NI SJAON WdS-INV8 HdAd iFAIT ANITANNNA
INJAT
I NOISSTS TVHINID N6S:1T-NV00:8 a711ve OY.LID A1990g/110Z T YTLHOIVM
alnyedaq jualld wdoge:ol J9jua) ssauisng
Bujuies] soyerapop wdo0:01-wdoo:6 gV JOOHIAQ 1oAY
|e1oog weiboid Buuojuspyy Auouiy wdog:6-wdog:g @ YOOUBAQ JoAY
[e100S YHSVO wdog:g-wdog:g O YOOUBAQ 18l
Jenbueg Buiuadp wdog:g-wdpo:2 Vv wooljjeg
uopdasay wdoo:z-wdog:9 Agqon eyooeg
sbunaaspy ajels wdog:9-wdog:g gv Od '43'3D ‘'av 99
HOXOIY 82uUaIBIU0YD wdoo:g-wdog:e g wooljjeq
sbugeasyy aapiwwo) wdoo:¢-wdoo:z g 0¥ 'O '4-v 3oousn0 99
pieog AJoSIApY |eloueul wdoo:¢-wdoo:z wooipseoqg asey)
uopnadwo) Apmg ased wdg | p-weg:|| 4 ‘3 'Q "0 MoopenQ Jeary
uonejuauQ Apmig ased weQQ:| L -weQo:0l g 00[BAQ JBAIY
Bunesyy sebpnr Apn)g ase) wepo: | L-wego:ol W OOHAAQ Jany
Splg souaIs8juo) £1.0T weQQ:ZI-weQo:6 43 Aigjjeg pueig
s9|qel "oju| wdoo:5-we0:6 uoiouN4-ald YOOUaAQ Janry
00S Buneapy sioauq Jo pieog wdoo:ZL-Wwepo:6 wooJpieog aseyd
. s slapenbpeay juswdojaasg/buiwwelbolq wdp0:6-Wepo:6 H JOoUaAQ 99
-aouepuany 09 ay). uQ Buiuieay wdpO:6-wep:6 | uonouni-aid JOOUBAQ ‘O Q99
‘153 va [eALsy JualD wepe:g Jaua) ssauisng TTOZ OHNOV1O
INQ peoT Jopuap wdpo:01-wdog:s V iIeH }qiyx3
B3] UoouwIdyy wdoo:1 ealy eal
sleulwag wdp-wdg)‘wel | abejg uiepy
000S juny JabuaAedg BPIM MOYS wdpo:g-weQo: || Y lleH Hqyx3
:22UepUAY SINOH Moys wdoo:5-wepo: L1 V lleH Rqiyx3
’ P IIEH Ul paMO||y SIOPUSA wepQo:0L v l[eH ¥quyx3
353 r {EALIY JuaID wepo:0l odx3 puayaam saipel £1_AON ‘NNS
INO 3AON weQQ:gl -wdsy:6
dsuewojuad wdsp:6 — wdgo:g
uadQ Bunesg wdog:L HJAQ
0021 feaqdn wdog:Z — wdoo:L IleH rexoey
-35UeDUa uado yeaqdn/uado AqqoT wdgy:g
’ pusivy uadQ s100Q apIsINQ wdopg:e HdAQ AuoydwAs
153 HI dnjeg wdog:g Il'eH renosy YJuIN s,usnoyjaag ‘g [eo1SselD) SHO

110T — ATAFIM dISIATY
HOVTESOAHC




[[eH sdueuLIopdd SOAR( = HdAQ SWo0y Suled] 20IUO = d-V NOW 4~V JO00[I2AQ JoAlY = 4-V Od a-v wooljied = -V T1vd

L H-V Swooy Sunddp Y00[19A0 = H-V 0DD d-V swooy Sunesy A1[[eD pueln = -V DO O-V S[ieH 1qiyxd = D-V HA
NOILdFOTH Nd6S:11-INV00:8 dSVHO FOOTID OVIN d9.13d
NOILdFOTAd Wd6S T1-NV00:8 Agd0T10Y
LNovayd d6S:T1-NV00:8 H-V 09D
LNodvadd Id6S T1-NV00:8 4-v DD
LigIHX4 Wd6S 11-INV00:8 a-v 1ivd
o) dOVIOLS Nd6S:11-INV00:8 -V NON TVALLS3] OO % INIM 1107 | L1 AON 'SINHL
p:\4 FONVINIOIIId INDOT-WdOE:L HdAd SYWISRIHD FLIHM 4D AVAAVOdd
JOHSIOM
f NOISS3S TVIINID Nd00:T -INV0E:9 vV Hd ONINIVIL WVXT LI NVOIHOIW
VAV NOILLdIDTA IN6S:T1T-WV00:8 dSVHO
YANNIA Nd6S: 11-INV00:8 JH3
NOILJFOTY Wd6S: 11-INV00:8 4-vOd
va NOILdFOTH dIA Nd6S: 1 1-INV00:8 AH9010Y YINNIA OO LNIA
dn 13S Wd6S 11-INV00:8 a-v 1ivd
o) IOVIOLS Nd6S:11-INV00:8 d-V NOW TVAILSHd AOOd % INIM 110T 91 AON 'ddm
FJONVINIOIIad WdOT-WdOE:L HdAd
AV NI SIAON INdS-INV8 LS NOAT ‘HdAQ SYWISRIHD F1IHM 4D AVMAVOdd
ainyedaq waln wdoo:0L J9)Ud) ssauisng
Janbueg Buiso|n wdpe:g-wdoo:9 Y wooljeg
SJuapIsald jsed — UoISsag |elauag) wdog:g-wdog: 4-9 Aigjleo) pueln
Bunasy uonisues ) pieog wdoo:c-wdoo:z wooipieog aseyd
IA 8 lIA suoissag jsalaju| wdg|:-wdoo:z 4-V OY ‘H-V %00UaA0 99
Jealg youm wdpQ:z-wdgl:zZ| AMS 4O
IA 8 A\ SUOISSaS Jsaldu| wdg|:Z}-wepQ:0l 4-V OY ‘H-V %00UdA0 99
INO peo Jouqiyx3 wdoo:¢-weQo:0L aog wooljeg
sBuimesgsepealg Joyqyx3 wep0:01-wepo:s ang wooljjeq
005 siapenbpeay Juswdojarsg/buiwwesbold wdpo:9-weQ:6 H YOOUaA0 99
-35UBDUS 09 ay] uQ bBujuies wdp0:g-WweQ:6 | uonouny-ald YOOUaAQ ‘' 09O
: pusny s9|qe] "oju| wdpOo:g-weQo:8 uonOUN4-31d YOOUBAQ Jonly
153 va [eAlY JUBID weQg:/ Jajuan ssauisng TT0Z OHNOV19
o) JOVIOLS INd6S:11-INV00-8 d-v NOW TVAILS3d AOOd %2 INIM 110T SI AON 'SINL
NI FAON dadl LS NOAT ‘HdAQ
AV dIJLS 3SNOH agl HdAd SYWISIHHO FLIHM “4D AVMAVOdd
ainuedaq Jusi) wdoo:6 J9)Ud) ssaulsng
sBuimesg/moys Jonqiyx3 wdpg:2-wdog:g aog wooljjeg
(Vd/OHS) moys Ape3 souqiyx3 wdpg:g-wdog:y @aog wooljjeg
uoISSag |esauss) wdpg:g-wdog: v Vv wooljjeg
pieog AIoSIApY JoNqIyx3 wdg|:p-wdgl:g woolpieog aseyd
Al '8 |1] Suoissag jsalsju| wdg|:y-wdoo:Z 4-V 0¥ ‘H-V ¥0ooieAQ 99
yeaug younT wdpQ:z-wdog:zi 3US HO
Il '8 | SUoIssag jsalau| wdog:Z|-WwegL:0l 4-V O ‘H-V %0o0uaAQ 99
siapenbpea juswdojaasqg/buiwweltold wdoo:6-Wwepn:6 H YOOU3AQ0 99

1107 — ATATIM dISIATY
HIOVTEFSOAHCT




JIeH 2oueuI0)Iad SOA2(d = HdAQ

Swooy SurPspy 20O = A-V NOW

H-V swooy Sunesiy JOOH9AQ = H-V ODD

-V J00[12AQ J9ATY = 4-V O
-V swooy Sunsay Kisfjen pueln = 4-y OO

d-v woodjjed = d-V TIvd
-V S[IeH ¥qIyxd = D-V HY

o)l IOVIOLS N6S: 1 1-NV00:8 a-v NOW TVALLSTI AOO % ANIM 1102
01440 INd6S:TT-INV00:8 YIND 'Snd
va HONAT Nd6S:11-INV00:8 a-v 11vd | 19NONVE ONIAIDSINVHL YILLOYL TAW | #T AON "SYNHIL
TVSYVAHTA NJOE:6-NdOE™9
vV NI JAON WNdS-NVS HdAQ YINOVIOUNN ‘LITIVE 4D
o)l FOVIOLS Nd6S: 1 T-INV00:8 a-v NOW TVALLSTI AOO4 % ANIM 110T
vd dnlias Nd6S:11-INV00:8 a-v 11vd | 13NONVE ONIAIDOSINVHL YZLLOYL TIN €2 AON ‘ddm
Sy ystuy 100 Suifjddy Nd6S:1 1-INV00:9 DD DINS
o'l IOVIOLS Nd6S:11-NV00:8 a-v NOW TVALLSTI AOO4 ¥ ANIM 1107
TvSAvIHTI INOE:6-NdOE'9
AV NI JAON WNdS-NVS HdAd YTIOVIDLNN ‘LAT1TVE 4D TT AON 'sANL
TVSAIVIHTY INOE:6-INdOE9
AV NI JAON INdS-NVS "LS NOAT ‘HdAQ YIYOVYILNN ‘13T1TVE 4O
o)l FOVIOLS Nd6S:11-NV00:8 ad-v NOW TVALLSTd AOO4 % ANIM 110T 1Z AON ‘NOW
N0 GAON WV Nd6 LS NOAT HdAQ
FONVINIOJITd INd6-NdOE9
AV JONVINIOIYId WJOE:€-Nd 1 HdAdQ SYWISRIHD LIHM 4D AVMAVOUEd
NMOQIVAL Nd6S:11-NV00:8 a-v 1ive
o)l JOVIOILS Nd65:11-INV00:8 d-v NOW TVALLSTA AOOd 2 ANIM 1107 0Z AON 'NNS
FONVINIOIIAd INdOE-01-NdS
AV FONVINIOAIAd WJOE - NdZ HdAd SYWISRIHD F1IHM 4D AVMAVOYd
LNOMVIYg Wd6S T11-WV00:8 H-V 09D
LNOYVIIg NJ6S:11-INV00:8 4V 0D
LIgIHX3 Id6S:T1-INV00'S a-v 1Ive
ox| FOVIOLS Wd6S:11-INV00°8 a-v NOW TVALLSTd AOO4 % INIM 110T 61 AON'LVS
MV FONVINIOLIAd Wd01-WNd8 HdAdQ SYWISIIHD FLIHM 4D AVAAVOYEd
o)l DONILLIIN Wd00:ZI-NV00:8 vV Od ONILIFN SYIOVNVIA ALID
LOOMVIIg INd6S:T1-INV00°8 H-V 099
1NoMvIdd Nd6S:11-NV00:8 4V DD
L191HX3 Wd6S:11-NV00:8 a-v 1ive
¥ IOVIOLS NJ6S: 1 1-INV00:8 a-v NOW TVALLSTd OO %@ INIM 10T 81 AON T4
p:\'4 FONVINNOTITd INdO1-INOE L HdAd SYWISRIHD FLIHM "4 AVMAVOd

1107 — ATATIM AISIATY

HOVIESOAHC]




[IBY 2dueuLiolIad SOAS( = HAAd

dI¥1S ISNOH |

AAOW |

JONVINIOId3d

Swooy Sunss]y S0JUON = 0-V NOW
H-V swooy Sundsp JOOSAQ = H-V ODOD

d-V Y0090 J9ARY = 4-V OY
4-V swooy Sunssiy A1s|[e puel = -V DO

"LS NOAT ‘HdAQ |
HAAQ

JTNOVIOLNN " LATIVE AD

g-v wooljjeqd = -V T1vd
DV SlieH 1qiyxd = -V HA

e JOVNOLS L

_INd6S:11-WNV00'8 |

“INOE6-WNA0EL |

__TVAILS34 G004 @ INIM 110 |

JONVIANOANEd
AV JONVINEOIId Wd-INdT HdAd YINOVIOLNN -LITIVE 4D
)| IOVIOLS Wd6S:11-NV00:8 a-v NOW TVALLSHd AOO4 % INIM 110T 9T AON 'LVS
: FONVINIOIIad Wd0t£:6-INd0t:L
AV FONVINIOLITd Wd-INdT HdAd HINOVHIOLNN "LITIVE AD
N JOVAOLS Wd6S:11-INV00:8 d-V NOW TVALLSFd AOOd % INIM 110Z ST AON Tdd
AAvd HdAd JIYDVHYOLNAN 'LITTIVE 4O

1102 — ATAIIM dISIATY
HOVTISOAHC]



